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Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited

(JV of Bharat Petroleum & GAIL Gas)
Notice

Shorter Notice is hereby given that the 9% Annual General Meeting of the Members of HARIDWAR NATURALGAS
PRIVATE LIMITED will held on Monday, 15" September 2025 at 11:00 am. (IST) through Video Conferencing
(“VC”)/Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited standalone Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 March
2025, Directors’ Report including Annexure thereto, Independent Auditors’ Report and the comments thereon of
the Comptroller & Auditor General of India, if any and to pass the following resolution, with or without
modification (s), as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT audited standalone Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31% March 2025,
Independent Auditors” Report, Comments thereon of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India and Directors” Report
including Annexures thereto, be and are hereby approved and adopted.”

2. To authorize the Board of Directors of Company to fix the remuneration of the Statutory Auditor (s) of the Company
in terms of the provisions of Section 142 of the Companies Act, 2013, who was appointed as Statutory Auditors for
the FY 2025-26 by Comptroller and Auditor General in terms of provisions of section 139 of Companies Act, 2013
and rules thereunder to pass the following resolution, with or without modification (s), as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to decide and fix the
remuneration of the Statutory Auditor (s) of the Company in terms of the provisions of Section 142 of the Companies
Act, 2013, appointed as Statutory Auditors for the FY 2025-26 by Comptroller and Auditor General of India in terms of
provisions of section 139 of Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder, as may be deemed fit by the Board”.

Special Business:

3. To appoint Shri Goutom Chakraborty (DIN: 09027561) as a Chairman and Non-Executive Director

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 152 and all other applicable provisions if any, of the Companies
Act 2013 (“The Act”), read with The Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014, including
any statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof, and enabling provisions of Articles of Association of the
company, Shri Goutom Chakraborty (DIN: 09027561), who was appointed by the Board of Directors as an Additional
Director with effect from 28t May , 2025 and holds office up to the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting under
Section 161 read with Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and who has consented to
act as Director be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Shri Goutom Chakraborty be and is hereby nominated as Chairman in pursuant to
provisions of Articles of Association of the company and who was appointed by the Board of Directors as Chairman
w.e.f 01.07.2025 for term up to 2 years or until further order whichever is earlier.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT CS of the Company be and is hereby authorized to file necessary e-Forms and
documents with the registrar of the Company and to do all such acts, deeds, things and matters as may be necessary
and expedient to give effect to the aforesaid resolution.”

4.  Toappoint Shri Vilin Purushottam Zunke (DIN: 1()601550).&\33 Nb{{ -Executive Director

F "\//
&
To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or W'Lthout modlh@(s), llWlution as an Ordinary
@}

Resolution: oif Haridwar b=t
= =

Corporate Office : House No. 129, New Haridwar Colony, chWauachay cal C.(enﬂﬁanipur More, Haridwar-249401 (U.K.)
Regd. Office : Haridwar Natural Gas Private I{ G Station, Khasra No. 569-570,
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 152 and all other applicable provisions if any, of the Companies
Act 2013 (“The Act”), read with The Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014, including
any statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof, and enabling provisions of Articles of Association of the
company, Shri Vilin Purushotam Zunke (DIN: 10601550), who was appointed by the Board of Directors as an
Additional Director with effect from 28t May, 2025 and holds office up to the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting
under Section 161 read with Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and who has
consented to act as Director be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT CS of the Company be and is hereby authorized to file necessary e-Forms and
documents with the registrar of the Company and to do all such acts, deeds, things and matters as may be necessary
and expedient to give effect to the aforesaid resolution.”

5. To ratify the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company for the
financial year 2025-26 pursuant to Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules
thereunder.

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of
Companies. (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the
remuneration of Rs 35,000/-(Rupees thirty-five thousand only) plus GST @ 18% and out of pocket expenditure limited
to Rs 15,000/-and payable to M/s Chandra Wadhwa and Co, New Delhi having FRN 000239, for conducting cost
audit of the Company for the financial year 2025-26, as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in its 59t
Board Meeting held on 29.08.2025, be and is hereby ratified.”

By the order of the Board of Directors

\W=

Place: Haridwar ikha
Date: 04.09.2025 ompany Secretary)
Registered Office:

Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited
COCO-CNG Station, Khasra No. 569-570,
Near Govind Garden, Jawalapur,
Haridwar, Uttarakhand, India, 249404

NOTES:

(1) In view of the prevailing situation of COVID-19 pandemic, The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA”) has vide its
circular dated 13 January, 2021 read with circulars dated 5% May, 2020 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”)
permitted holding of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through VC/OAVM, without the physical presence of the
members at the common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and MCA
Circulars, the AGM of the company is being held through VC/OAVM.

(2) As per provisions of Clause 3AIL of the General Circular No.20/2020 dated 5t May, 2020 the matters of Specials
Business of the accompanying notice, are considered to be unavoidable by the Board and hence, form part of this notice.

(3) Since, this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC/OAVM, physical attendance of members has
been dispensed with, accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for the
AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip have not been sent through this notice.

(4) The Register of Directors and their shareholding, maintained u/s 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Register of
Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested maintained u/s 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and all
other documents referred to in the notice and expiia g $tatement, will be available for inspection by the members of

' hours 10:00 A.M. to 06:00 P.M. (except Saturday and
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Sunday) up to the date of Annual General Meeting and will also be available during the Annual General Meeting.
Members seeking inspection or any other information with regard to the accounts or any matter to be placed at the AGM
are requested to write to the company on or before 15t September, 2025 through email on cs@hngpl.co.in. The same will
be replied by the company suitably.

(5) Pursuant to Section 139 (5) of the Companies Act 2013 the auditors of the Government Company are appointed by the
Comptroller & Audit General of India (C&AG) and in terms of Section 142 of the Companies Act 2013, the remuneration
has to be fixed by the company in the Annual General Meeting or in such manner as the company in General Meeting
may determine. The members of the company in 8thAnnual General Meeting held on 06.09.2024 had authorized the
Board of Directors to fix the remuneration of Statutory Auditors for the Financial Year 2024-25. Accordingly, the Board
of Directors has fixed audit fee of Rs. 75,000 towards audit fee for the Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2024-25
and Limited review fees of Rs. 25,000/~ per quarter plus applicable taxes for conducting limited review of the accounts
of the company for quarter ending 30t Sep’24, 31+t Dec’24 and 30 June’25 and travelling expenses at actual limited to Rs
10,000/ - per quarter for the conduct of Limited Review of accounts of the company.

(6) Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the meeting are advised to send a duly
certified copy of the Board Resolution/Authorisation etc. authorizing their representative to attend and vote at the
meeting, The said Resolution/authorisation to be sent to the company secretary at email contact cs@hngpl.co.in and to be
sent through courier at address: House No.-129, New Haridwar Colony, Behind Matrichaya Medical Centre, Ranipur
Mode, Haridwar-249401 (U.K.).

(7) In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2024-25 is being
sent only through electronic mode to members. Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2024-25 will also
be available on the company’s website www.hngpl.in.

(8) Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum,
(9) None of the Directors of the company is in any way related to each other.

(10) A statement pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to the Special Business to be transacted at
AGM is annexed hereto.

(11) PROCEDURE FOR JOINING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM

The company will provide VC/OAVM facility to its members for participating at the AGM. Members are requested to
follow the procedure given below:
1. Launch Internet Browser by typing the link to join
2. After logging in, click on join meeting option.
3. Then click on video icon appearing in AGM event of Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited, to attend the
meeting,.
4. Facility to join the meeting shall be opened 15 minutes before the scheduled time of the AGM and shall be kept
open throughout the proceedings of the AGM.
5. Members who need assistance before or during the AGM, can contact HNGPL CS on cs@hngpl.co.inor call on
number 01334-220333.
6. Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be reckoned for the purpose of quorum under Section
103 of the Act.

Information and Instruction for e-voting at the AGM (by Show of hands or Instant Poll)

The Chairman may decide to conduct vote by show of hands, unless a demand for poll is made by any member in
accordance with section 109 of the Act. Therefore:

Procedure once such demand of poll is made:

1. The shareholders shall convey their vote as assent/dissent/abstention on each resolution through their
registered email Id to Email ID: cs@hngpl.co.inquoting their folio no.

{ Haridwar

3\
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
[Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standard-2]

Item no. 3:
To appoint Shri Goutom Chakraborty (DIN: 09027561) as a Chairman and Non-Executive Director

Shri Goutom Chakraborty (DIN: 09027561), was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from 28t
May 2025, pursuant to section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013. Shri Goutom Chakraborty (DIN: 09027561), holds office as
Director up to the date of this Annual General Meeting and is eligible for appointment as Director.

Also, he is nominated as Chairman on the Board of HNGPL pursuant to Articles of association of company w.e.f 01.07.2025
for term up to 2 years or until further order whichever is earlier.

The appointment of Shri Goutom Chakraborty (DIN: 09027561), as Director shall be effective upon approval by the
members in the Meeting.

Shri Goutom Chakraborty (DIN: 09027561), is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of
the Act and has given his consent to act as a Director. In the opinion of the Board, Shri Goutom Chakraborty (DIN:

09027561), possesses appropriate skills, experience, and knowledge.
The Board accordingly recommends the resolution as set out in Item #3 of the notice for approval of the members.

No directors, key managerial personnel, manager or their relatives are interested or concerned in the resolution except Shri
Goutom Chakraborty (DIN: 09027561), to the extent that he is a Director of the Company.

Details of the Appointee Directors

The detail of the Directors who was appointed is given under in pursuance with the Secretarial Standard-2 issued under
Section 118 of the Companies Act, 2013:

Sr. Particulars Shri Goutom Chakraborty (DIN: 09027561)

No

5 Age | 59 Years

2, Qualification BE (Electrical) from Gauhati University and MBA

(Marketing) from Punjab Technical University

4. Date of First Appointment on Board 28th May 2025

5 Shareholding in the Company NIL

6. Relationship with other Directors/Manager or Key | No relationship with other Key Managerial
Managerial Personnel Personnel or Directors

i3 Number of Board Meetings attended during the year One (1)

8. Other Directorships and Memberships/ 1. Purba Bharti Gas Private Limited (Chairman and

Nominee Director

Chairmanship of Committees of other Boards 2. Andhra Pradesh Gas Distribution Corporation

limited (Nominee Director)
3. GAIL Gas Limited (Chief Executive Officer)

Item no. 4:
To appoint Shri Vilin Purushottam Zunke (DIN: 10601550) as a Non-Executive Director

Shri Vilin Purushottam Zunke (DIN: 10601550), was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from
28h May 2025, pursuant to section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013. Shri Vilin Purushottam Zunke (DIN: 10601550), holds
office as Director up to the date of this Annual General Meeting and is eligible for appointment as Director.
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The appointment of Shri Vilin Purushottam Zunke (DIN: 10601550) , as Director shall be effective upon approval by the
members in the Meeting.

Vilin Purushottaﬁn Zunke (DIN: 10601550), is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of
the Act and has given his consent to act as a Director. In the opinion of the Board, Shri Vilin Purushottam Zunke (DIN:
10601550), possesses appropriate skills, experience, and knowledge.

The Board accordingly recommends the resolution as set out in Item #3 of the notice for approval of the members.

No directors, key managerial personnel, manager or their relatives are interested or concerned in the resolution except Shri
Vilin Purushottam Zunke (DIN: 10601550), to the extent that he is a Director of the Company.

Details of the Appointee Directors

The detail of the Directors who was appointed is given under in pursuance with the Secretarial Standard-2 issued under
Section 118 of the Companies Act, 2013:

or. Particulars Shri Vilin Purushottam Zunke (DIN: 10601550)

No

13 Age 54 Years

2 Qualification BE (Electronics), Marathwada University and MBA

; Sikkim Manipal University

4. Date of First Appointment on Board 28th May 2025

o Shareholding in the Company NIL

6. Relationship with other Directors/Manager or Key | No relationship with other Key Managerial
Managerial Personnel Personnel or Directors

7 Number of Board Meetings attended during the year 1

8. Other Directorships and Memberships/ No
Chairmanship of Committees of other Boards

Item No. 5~

To ratify the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company for the
financial year 2025-26 pursuant to Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules
thereunder. :

The Board has approved in its 59" meeting held on August 29, 2025, the appointment of M/s Chandra Wadhwa and Co, New
Delhi having FRN 000239 at a remuneration of Rs 35,000/-(Rupees thirty-five thousand only) plus GST @ 18% and out of
pocket expenditure limited to Rs 15,000/-to conduct the Cost Audit of the Company for the financial year 2025-26.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of Companies (Audit &
Auditor Rules), 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor is required to be ratified by the members of the Company.

The Board accordingly recommends the resolution as set out in Item #6 to be passed by the members of the company as an
ordinary resolution.

No directors, key managerial personnel, manager, or their relatives are interested or concerned in the resolution.

By the order of the Board of Directors

Place: Haridwar
Date: 04.09.2025

ompany Secretary)
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Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited

{JV of Bharat Petroleum & GAIL Gas)

DIRECTORS' REPORT

To,
The Members
Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited (HNGPL)

Your directors have pleasure in presenting the 9t (nineth) Annual Report of Haridwar Natural Gas
Private Limited (HNGPL) together with the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year
ended 315 March, 2025.

Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited (HNGPL) is a Joint Venture of Bharat Petroleum
Corporation Limited (BPCL) and Gail Gas Limited (GGL) (BPCL: GGL 50:50) incorporated as
private company under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 on 20.04.2016.

The Company is established with the objective to develop to city gas distribution (CGD) network
in the city of Haridwar, Uttarakhand as authorized by Petroleum and Natural Gas Regulatory Board
(PNGRB). The Geographical Area (GA) constitutes the entire Haridwar district of approximately
2305 sq. km.

The authorized and paid-up share capital of the company as on 315 March 2025 is Rs. 90 Crore
and Rs. 87.16 Crores respectively, the same is held by BPCL and GGL in the ratio of 50:50.

During the Financial Year 2024-25, company’s physical shareholding is converted into
Dematerialization form with ISIN No. INEIAEC01016 at NSDL and the Company tied up a rupee
term loan of Rs.30 Crore from HDFC Bank as per offer letter 28.01.2025 in addition to its existing
outstanding loan of amount Rs. 70.75 Crore with HDFC Bank.

STATEMENT OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

Amount Rs.in Lacs

Particulars ' Financial Year Financial Year
2024-25 2023-24

Revenue from operations
11592.79 10989.17

Other Income 58.93 168.37
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Expenses other than Depreciation, Finance

Cost, Exceptional Items and Tax Expense 9370.30 9115.94
Profit before Depreciation, Finance Cost,

Exceptional Items and Tax Expense 2281.42 2041.60 |
Less: Depreciation/Amortization/Impairment 55741 499 46
Profit/loss before Finance Costs, Exceptional

items and Tax Expense 1724.02 1542.14
Less: Finance Costs 821.07 742.09
Profit/loss before Exceptional Items and Tax

Expense 902.95 800.05
Add/(less): Exceptional Items 2 _
Profit/loss before Tax Expense 902.95 800.05
Less: Tax Expense (Current &Deferred) 109.69 203.90
Profit/loss for the year (1) 793.26 596.15
Total Comprehensive Income/loss (2) G 5
Total (1&2) 793.26 596.15
Balance of profit/loss for earlier years 697.86 101.71
Less: Transfer to Debenture Redemption

Reserve % .
Less: Transfer to Reserves s 2
Balance carried forward 1491.12 697.86

*Figures in the bracket indicate the negative figure

REVIEW OF THE OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY:

During the financial year ended 31t March 2025, your Company’s total income was
Rs 11,651.72 Lakh as against Rs. 11,157.54 Lakh during the previous financial year 2023-
24. Total expenses other than Exceptional Items and Tax Expense for the year were Rs
10748.77 Lakh as against Rs. 10,357.49 Lakh during the previous financial year 2023-24.
The Company has earned a profit of Rs 793.26 Lakh as against profit of Rs. 596.15 Lakh
during the previous financial year 2023-24.

PHYSICAL PERFORMANCE:
Our company has commissioned 2 CNG stations and 142 domestic PNG connections

during FY 2024-25 as against 1 CNG stations 1292 domestic PNG connections during FY
2023-24. Key physical performances are as given below:



7


Nature of activity

industrial consumers)

UOM Physical performance
FY 2024-25 | FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

CNG stations No.s 2 1 3
Domestic PNG connections | No.s 142 1292 2759
Comme'rcial PNG N 12 o 1
connections

Industrial PNG connections | No.s 4 12 11
Steel Pipeline construction | Kms 0.0228 0
MDPE pipeline construction | Kms 12.25 20.802 13.45
CNG sale including CBG MMSCM 10.37 10.01 922
PNG sale (incl. Comm & MMSCM 613 436 3,06

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE:

The total cumulative capital expenditure incurred up to FY 2024-25 is Rs. 22338.67 Lakh against
Rs 21293.42 Lakh. up to FY 2023-24 which includes:
e Rs. 16159.96 Lakh towards fixed assets capitalized on account of CNG stations and PNG

network capitalizations up to FY 2024-25 (Rs.13532.37 Lakh up to FY 2023-24)
e Rs. 690.95 Lakh capitalized on account of Land up to FY 2024-25 (690.95 Lakh up to FY

2023-24)

e Rs. 115.24 Lakh towards other assets on accounts of furniture fixture, equipment, computer,
Software etc. (Rs. 111.15 Lakh up to FY 2023-24)
e Rs. 724.72 Lakh for lease hold land at Jawalapur & Roorkee. (Rs. 724.72 Lakhs up to FY

2023-24)

e Rs. 4647.80 Lakh towards capital work in progress of under construction project expenses upto
FY 2024-25 (Rs.6234.23 Lakh up to FY 2023-24)

DIVIDEND

Your directors have not recommended any dividend for the financial year ending 31* March 2025

due to funds requirement for expansion and completion of project.

TRANSFER TO RESERVE

Your directors did not propose any amount to reserve during the financial year under review.
However, Company has transferred profit after tax to other equity as retained earning amounting

Rs. 1491.12 Lakh.
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TRANSFER TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

During the period under review, there is no unpaid/unclaimed dividend which is required to
transfer in IEPF (Investor Education and Protection Fund) as per the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF THE BUSINESS

There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the year under review.
PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits and, as such, no amount of principal or interest was
outstanding, as on the balance sheet closure date.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorized Share Capital of the company is Rs. 90 Crore. The paid-up share capital of the
company is Rs. 87.16 Crore as on 31* March 2025.

CREDIT RATING

M/s India Rating & Research (IND-Ra) re-affirms Long-Term Issuer Rating at IND A-/stable to
the Company with Stable Outlook. Further, for non-fund-based limits the rating is affirmed at IND
A-/ stable/IND Al.

PROCUREMENT FROM MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES (MSME)

In terms of the Public Procurement Policy for MSEs policy, During the year company has procured
44% from MSME venders as against the target of Govt. of India of 25%.

HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT

Our Company believes that safety of its workforce and all its stakeholders is of critical significance
to its functioning and success. We have incorporated all the necessary measures to promote the
highest level of Safety, Health, Environment, and loss control in all areas of implementation of the
CGD projects; Natural Gas transmission; distribution through CGD network and CNG systems
installed within and outside the city boundary and the supply of PNG to various customers with
clear emphasis on improving the environment for sustainable development. Our Company is
committed to promoting globally comparable levels of HSE management in the areas of its
business. A number of initiatives have been taken to ensure the safety of both people and
equipment. Various measures and best practices have been put in place to avoid injuries, accidents,
or any other untoward incident.
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The ability to share knowledge across organizational boundaries is a key aspect of a sound HSE
culture. Our Company held several knowledge-sharing and training sessions to create awareness
on all critical issues related to health and safety during work and beyond to internal and external
stakeholders. Our Company is complying with all relevant statutory rules and regulations including
PESO, Factory Act 1948, Gas Cylinder Rule 2016, PNGRB regulations on safety, occupational
health, and environment in order to achieve utmost safety in all its working and business
activities”.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The policy of Corporate Governance is not applicable on the Company; however, the Company
believes that good corporate governance is critical in establishing a positive organizational culture
and it is evident by its conduct of operations and business with responsibility, accountability,
consistency, fairness, and transparency towards its stakeholders.

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or Courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and Company's operations in future.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Comptroller and Auditors General of India had appointed Anil Jain & Co (Registration No.
CR3508) vide letter No./CA.V/COY/CENTRAL GOVERNMENT, HNGPL (1)/1637 dated
21/09/2024 as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2024-25 from 8"
Annual General Meeting, until the conclusion of 9" Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Statutory Auditors have given an unqualified report. The report is self-explanatory and does not
require any further comments by the board.

Appointment Letter of Statutory Auditors by Comptroller and Auditors General of India for the
Financial Year 2025-26 is yet to be received.

COMPTROLLER AND AUDITORS GENERAL’S COMMENT

The observations of Auditors in their report read with notes to the accounts are self-explanatory.
There are no qualifications / observations on the Annual Accounts by the Statutory Auditors as per
their report. The Comptroller and Auditor General of India has issued its report and have decided
not to conduct the supplementary audit of the financial statements.

In view of the above, CAG has no comments to give on the report of Statutory Auditors.
(Annexure-I)

INTERNAL AUDITOR

The Company has appointed M/s Demlani & Associates, Haridwar (FRN: 035670C) as Internal
Auditor for the financial year 2024-25. M/s Demlani & Associates, Haridwar carried out Internal
Audit of the Company for FY 2024-25.

10
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SECRETARIAL AUDITOR
As per Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with clarification to Rule 9 of Companies,

(Appointment  and
outstanding loans or borrowings from banks or public financial institutions existing on the last date
of latest audited financial statement i.e. 31st March 2025 is lower than Rs.100 Crore, therefore
secretarial audit is not applicable on the company for the Financial Year 2024-2025.

Remuneration

of  Managerial

COST AUDITOR AND COST RECORDS

Personnel)

Rules, 2014,

The Company has appointed M/s Chandra Wadhwa & Company, Cost Auditors, New Delhi (FRN:
000239) as Cost Auditor for the financial year 2024-25 as per provisions of section 148 of
Companies Act, 2013. The company has maintained proper records and accounts of the same as
required under the applicable provisions of act and rules thereunder.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Following are the particulars of appointments and cessation of the Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel of your Company during the Financial Year 2024-25:

S. | Name of the | Designation DIN/PAN Date of Date of cessation
No. Director ' appointment
1. |Shri Pankaj Non- 10145616 25.04.2023 12.04.2024**
Gupta Executive
Director
2. | Shri Yougesh Non- 09655483 12.12.2023 12.04.2024*
Kumar Executive
Director
3. | Shri Ajay Non- 08585727 12.04.2024*
Sinha Executive
Director
4, | Shri Cherchil Non- 10601542 23.04.2024%** 04.09.2024%#%**
Gupta Executive
Director
5. | Shri Kaushik Non- 10769334 05.09.2024**** -
Mitra Executive
Director
6. | Shri  Mohit CEO ABAPBO115A 18.04.2022 29.04.2024**x**
Bhatia

11
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7. | Shri Teekam CEO AFHPS5726D 30.04.2024 -
Singh

8. | Shri © Rajesh CFO ADYPA3231E 18.07.2021 12.06.2024% Frers
Aggarwal

9. | Shri Naveen CFO AIRPK0332Q 12.06.2024 -
Kumar

*Company vide Gail Gas Limited Communication Letter No. GAIL Gas/Noida/CS dated 12.04.2024 took note the
nomination of Shri Ajay Sinha as Additional director w.e.f 12.04.2024 via circulation (CR1/FY 2024-25) passed on
23.04.2024, in place of Shri Yougesh Kumar Gupta whose office ceased vide resignation letter dated 12.04.2024 in
line with nomination letter. Shri Ajay Sinha was further regularized as Director at AGM on 06.09.2024.

** Company vide Gail Gas Limited Communication. Letter No. GAIL Gas/Noida/CS dated 12.04.2024 took note of
cessation of office of Shri Pankaj Gupta Gupta via circulation (CR1/FY 2024-25) passed on 23.04.2024, whose office
ceased vide resignation letter dated 12.04.2024 in line with the Gail Gas communication letter.

***Company vide Gail Gas Limited Communication Letter No. GAIL Gas/Noida/CS dated 12.04.2024 took note the
nomination of Shri Cherchil Gupta as an Additional director w.e.f date of allotment of DIN i.e 23.04.2024 at its 49"
Board Meeting held on 25.04.2024.

**#*Company vide Gail Gas Limited Communication Letter No. GAIL Gas/Noida/CS dated 04.09.2024 took note
the nomination of Shri Kaushik Mitra as Additional director w.e.f date of allotment of DIN i.e 05.09.2024 via
circulation (CR4/FY 2024-25) passed on 05.09.2024, in place of Shri Cherchil Gupta whose office ceased vide
resignation letter dated 04.09.2024 in line with Gail Gas nomination letter. Shri Kaushik Mitra was further regularized
as Director at AGM on 06.09.2024
¥#4%*Company vide BPCL communication Letter No. HRD HQ.3. DEPU.HNGL dated 26.04.2024 took note the
nomination of Shri Teekam Singh as CEO w.e.f 30.04.2024 in place of CEO Shri Mohit Bhatia whose office ceased
w.e.f29.04.2024 at its 50" Board Meeting held on 30.04.2024.

*rxxx*Company vide Gail Gas communication Letter No. GGL/Noida/HR/8157/2024 dated 10.06.2024 took note
the nomination of Shri Naveen Kumar as CFO w.e.f 12.06.2024 in place of CEO Shri Rajesh Agrawal whose office
ceased w.e.f 12.06.2024 at its 51* Board Meeting held on 13.06.2024.

The change in the composition of Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel during
financial year ended March 31, 2025, to the date of signing of the Board’s Report is as
following:

S. | Name of the | Designation DIN/PAN Date of Date of cessation

No | Director appointment

1. | Shri Kaushik | Non-Executive 10769334 05.09.2024 28.05.2025%
Mitra Director

2. | Shri  Ajay | Non-Executive 08585727 12.04.2024 29.05.2023%*
Sinha Director

3. | Shri  Vilin | Non-Executive 10601550 28.05.2025* -
Purushottam Director
Zunke
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4. | Shri Goutom | Chairman and 09027561 28.05.2025%* -
Chakraborty | Non-Executive (Date of appointment as
g additional Director)
Director
U107 2025 s
(Datc of appointment as
Chairman)
5. | Shri T.V | Chairman and 09581136 01.07.2023 01.07.2025%***
Pandiyan Non-Executive (Date of appointment as (Pate of “55‘;‘?"“ of
Director Chaisrign) chairmanship)

*Company vide Gail Gas Limited Communication Letter No. GAIL Gas/Noida/CS dated 28.05.2025 took note the
nomination of Shri Vilin Purushottam Zunke as an Additional director w.e.f28.05.2025 in place of Shri Kaushik Mitra
at its 58" Board Meeting held on 26.06.2025 ,whose offices ceased vide resignation letter in line with Gail Gas Letter
reference no Gail Gas/Noida/CS dated 28.05.2025.

** Company vide Gail Gas Limited Communication Letter No. GAIL Gas/Noida/CS dated 28.05.2025 took note the
nomination of Shri Goutom Chakraborty as an Additional director w.e.f 28.05.2025 in place of Shri Ajay Sinha at its
58" Board Meeting held on 26.06.2025 ,whose offices ceased vide resignation letter received on 29.05.2025 in line
with Gail Gas Letter reference no Gail Gas/Noida/CS dated 28.05.2025.

***Company took note of Change in designation of Shri T.V Pandiyan as Director only as his office as Chairman
ceased w.e.f 30.06.2025 on completion of term of two years of Chairmanship by BPCL as per nominating promoter
intimation.

****Company took note of Shri Goutom Chakraborty as Chairman w.e.f 01.07.2025 at its 58" Board Meeting held
on 26.06.2025.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meets at the regular interval to review the Company’s business and discuss its strategy
and plans. During the period under review, the Board met 8 times viz.,

Sr. No. of Board Meetings Date of Board Meetings
No :

1. 49" Board Meeting 25.04.2024

2 50" Board Meeting 30.04.2024

3 51° Board Meeting 13.06.2024

4. 52"¢ Board Meeting 24.07.2024

5. 53" Board Meeting 06.09.2024

6. 54" Board Meeting 28.11.2024

i 55" Board Meeting 06.02.2025

8. 56" Board Meeting 10.03.2025
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Details of attendance are as under:

No. of Board Meetings
Sr. No. Director
Held Attended
: Shri T.V Pandiyan 8 8
2. | Shri Ashish Goyal 8 8
3. Shri Ajay Sinha 8 7
4. Shri Kaushik Mitra 8 7

INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARY/ JV/ ASSOCIATE COMPANY

The Company itself is a Joint Venture Company of BPCL and GGL in the ratio of 50:50. Further,
the Company has no Subsidiary Company or Associate Companies.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Pursuant to the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
& Redressal) Act, 2013, it is necessary to frame a policy and constitute an Internal Complaints
committee (ICC) to redress the complaints received regarding the same during the year under
review, wherever there are 10 or more employees in the Company.

Your company has framed a Policy on Prevention of sexual harassment of women at workplace in
the Financial Year 2024-25 to reaffirm its commitment towards zero tolerance of sexual
harassment and to provide a framework for dealing with sexual harassment incidents. The policy
is in line with the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013.

The copy of policy is placed at website with the following link: hitps:/hngpl.in/wp-
content/uploads/2023/1 1/HNGPL -Approved POSH-Policy.pdf

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013 with respect to FY 2024-25.

(a) | Number of complaints pending at the beginning of financial year | NIL
(b) | Number of complaints filed during the financial year NIL
(c) | Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year NIL
(d) | Number of complaints pending at the end of the Financial Year NIL

INTERNAL CONTROL AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has an internal control system, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity
of its operations and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the company’s
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policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records and timely preparation of reliable financial information.

There are adequate controls relating to strategic, operational, environmental, and quality related
aspects too.

While these controls have been effective throughout the year, these are reviewed on a periodic
basis for any changes/ modifications to align to business needs.

CEO/CFO certification in this regard is attached as Annexure- II.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has put in place the procedure for risk assessment and its minimization by way of
developing a comprehensive enterprise risk management framework including the risk
management policy in line with the business activities of the company during the Financial Year
2024-25.

The Copy of the policy is placed at website with the following link: https:/hngpl.in/wp-
content/uploads/2023/10/HNGPL Approved Risk-Management-Policy 11.10.23.pdf

Our Risk Management Policy is designed to manage strategic, operational, sustainability,
governance, among other risks associated with our business operations and growth objectives. We
consider all the risks holistically, keeping in mind the dynamic multi-faceted impact of a single
risk on other aspects of our business, and monitor and control such risks through various Key
Performance Indicators (KPIs).

To periodically review and monitor the identified risks, and mitigation measures, HNGPL’s Risk
Management Process is guided by a dedicated Board and Corporate-level Risk Management
Committee involving key managers of HNGPL. The committee meets once in half year or on need-
basis and reviews KPIs and major business risks, providing corrective measures to improve
business efficiency. Our risk management system is strong enough to guarantee accurate risk
identification and is adaptable enough to support dispersed risk management procedures.

We have a designated Chief Risk Officer for the company entrusted with responsibility to monitor,
manage and report all the identified risks.

HNGPL’s RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION STRUCTURE:

=8

Board of Directors J

e e—s——————
Corporate level Risk |
Management Committee J

CRO ‘

|
Unit Risk Owner |
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VIGIL MECHANISM

The company has in place a Whistle Blower Policy to deal with disclosures pertaining to any fraud
or suspected fraud involving employees of HNGPL. The policy facilitates safe and secure ways to
make these disclosures and safeguards the rights and interests of the employees disclosing any
fraudulent activities. To ensure due diligence the company has constituted an Investigation
Committee to investigate such disclosures.

The company vigilance mechanism is represented by one of its promoters, Gail Gas Limited. CVO
Shri Rajnesh Singh has been nominated as CVO at HNGPL.

The Copy of the policy is placed at website with the following link: https://hngplin/wp-
content/uploads/2023/10/HNGPL -Approved Whistle-Blower-Policy 11.10.23.pdf

A summary of vigilance cases during the year 2024-25 is as under:

Complaint/Detailed | Opening Received Total Disposed of Closing
Investigations Balance (as on | during the during the Balance as on
01.04.2024) year year 31.03.2025

(Under
Investigation)

Complaints 00 02 02 02 00

Detailed 00 02 02 02 00

Investigation

VIGIL AWARENESS

In Pursuance of the directions of Central Vigilance Commission, Vigilance Awareness Week
(VAW) was observed in HNGPL from 28™ October, 2024 to 03" October, 2024 with the theme
“Culture of Integrity for nations prosperity; Further, preventive vigilance measures cum
housekeeping activities were also taken up as a 3 month’s campaign from 16" August, 2024 to
15" November, 2024 as a precursor to VAW-2024. Various activities like essay competition, quiz
competition, slogan competition, etc. were organized within and outside HNGPL in which more
than 52 no. of employees/ contract employees participated.

SECRETARIAL STANDARD

The Management has observed and ensured all possible compliance of applicable Secretarial
Standards SS-1- on Meetings of Board and SS-2 on Annual General Meeting.
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PARTICULARS OF LOANS, INVESTMENTS, GUARANTEES AND SECURITIES
UNDER SECTION 186

The Company has not granted any loan, guarantee, or made any investments during the year ended
31t March 2025 under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As required pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 is
annexed as a part of this Report as Annexure -111.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There were no materially significant related party transactions entered into during the year by your
Company. All the related party transactions during the year were entered in the ordinary course of
business and on arm’s length basis. Particulars of contract or arrangement with related parties is
Annexed herewith in Form AOC-2 as Annexure-1V in terms of Section 134 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF
THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENT RELATED AND THE DATE OF REPORT

There are no other material changes and commitments in the business operations of the Company
from the financial year ending March 31%, 2025, to the date of signing of the Board’s Report as
above.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

The Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo
pursuant to provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of
Companies (Account) Rules, 2014:

A. Conservation of Energy:
While continuing to believe in philosophy of Energy saved is Energy produced, adequate
measures commensurate with the business operations have been taken to reduce and conserve

the energy consumption by utilizing energy efficient equipment whenever required and has
also planning to use alternate renewable sources.
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B. Technology Absorption:

Research and Development (R&D): Nil
Technology absorption, adoption and innovation: Nil

C. Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo:

Foreign Exchange Earnings: Nil
Foreign Exchange Outgo: Nil

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

During the FY 2024-25, the Company is falling under the criteria mentioned in Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. As per Companies (Amendment) Act, 2020,
Clause 9, where the amount to be spent by a company under CSR provision does not exceed fifty
Lakhs rupees, the requirement for constitution of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
shall not be applicable and the functions of such committee provided under this section shall, in
such cases, be discharged by the Board of directors of company.

A copy of the CSR policy is placed on the website of the Company at www.hngpl.in. The Annual
Report on CSR activities carried out by the Company during the financial year under review is
given as an Annexure -V, which forms part of this Report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS
OR TRIBUNALS

There have been no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future,

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(3)(c) and 134(5) of the Act, Directors of your
Company state and confirm that:

a. In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year 2024-25, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed and there are no material departures from the same.

b. The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025 and of the profit and loss of the
Company for year ended on that date;
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¢. The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the
company and for preventing fraud and other irregularities.

d. The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e. The Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

f.  The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

As per Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder, private companies are not required to comply
with the provisions of section 197 of the companies act, 2013. Therefore, such particulars have not
been included as part of the Board’s Report.

The employees at your company are the employees of Gail Gas Limited, BPCL and HNGPL.
Hence, HR initiatives undertaken by promoters’ companies Gail Gas Limited, BPCL and HNGPL
are implemented.

Total number of employees in your company including on deputation with across various
categories as per records on 31.03.2025 is as below:

No. of Employees as on 31.03.2025
Total On Deputation Permanent FTFT
15 4 2 9

DISCLOSURES ABOUT ACCOUNTING SOFTWARE FOR MAINTAINING ITS
BOOKS OF ACCOUNTS :

During the Financial Year 2024-25, the company used Tally software to maintain its books of
accounts. The accounting software have the following features:

(a) Able to record the audit trail of each and every transaction,

(b) Able to create and edit log of each change made in books of account along with the date when
such changes were made.

(c) Able to ensure that the audit trail cannot be disabled.
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(d) Able to audit by the statutory auditor to trace every step of the financial data of a particular
transaction right from the general ledger to its source document with the help of the audit trail.

DISCLOSURE OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN VALUATION AMOUNT ON ONE TIME
SETTLEMENT AND VALUATION WHILE AVAILING LOANS FROM BANKS AND
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

During the year under review, there is no one time settlement of Loan taken from any Bank.

DISCLOSURE OF APPLICATION MADE OR PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

During the year under review, there is no application made or proceeding pending under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

CAUTIONARY NOTE

This report may contain certain “forward-looking statements™ within the meaning of applicable
laws and regulations. Actual results may vary significantly from the statements contained in this
document due to various risks and uncertainties. The Company does not undertake to update these
statements.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The Board of Directors wish to place on record sincere thanks and gratitude to the Government of
Uttarakhand, Government of India, its bankers, institutions, suppliers and appreciation for the
commitment, dedication and hard work done by the employees of the Company. The Directors
also wish to express their heartfelt gratitude to the stakeholders for their continued support to the
company.

Date: 29- 08 . 2D2.5 For and on behalf of
Place: NQ..LA_Q, Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited

-

Goutom Chakraborty Ashish Goyal
Chairman Director
DIN: 09027561 DIN: 09592775
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INDIAN AUDIT & ACCOUNTS DEPARTMENT
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S5th, 6th, 7th & 10th Floor, C.A.G. Building Annexe, 10, Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, New Delhi - 110002

Tel. 011-23239213, 23239235, Fax: 011-23239211, Email: pdaenergyd|@cag.gov.in
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143(6)(B) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF HARIDWAR NATURAL GAS PRIVATE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR

ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

The preparation of financial statements of Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited for the
year ended 31 March 2025 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under
the Companies Act, 2013(Act) is the responsibility of the management of the company. The
statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 139(5)
of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under section 143 of
the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated
23 April 2025.

[, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided not to conduct
the supplementary audit of the financial statements of Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited for

the year ended 31 March 2025 under Section 143(6)(a) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Place: New Delhi (Guljari Lal)
Date: 7 g Moy 2028 Addl Dy. Comptroller & Auditor General (Energy)
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Annexure 2

HN

Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited

(JV of Bharat Petroleum & GAIL Gas)
CEO and_CFO Certification

We. Teekam Singh, Chief Executive Officer and Naveen Kumar, Chief Financial Officer
of Haridwar Natural Gas Pvt Ltd, to the best of our knowledge and belief certify that:

| We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year
ending March 31, 2025 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

e These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material
fact or contain statement that might be misleading:

e These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are
in compliance with existing Accounting Standards. applicable laws and regulations.

2. There are. to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered by the
Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violation of the Company’s
Code of Conduct.

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal control for financial
reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems
of the company pertaining to financial reporting and have disclosed to the auditors,
deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, ifany, of which we are aware
and steps taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

4. We have indicated to the Auditors:

e Significant changes, in internal control over financial reporting during the year
ended 3 1% March 2025.

e Significant changes in accounting policies during the year ending March 31,
2025 and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements: and

e Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the
involvement therein, if any. of the management or an employee having a
significant role in the company’s internal control system over financial

reporting.
0 \ 7 3,
aveen Kumar) (Teekant Singh)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer

Place: Haridwar
Dated: 30" July 2025

Corporate Office : House No.-129, New Haridwar Colony, Behind Matrichaya Medical Centre, Ranipur Mode, Haridwar-249401 (U
Regd. Office: Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited, (‘().(‘(}—(‘N(i Stalinn_‘l(hasm No. ﬁﬁ‘i-‘??ﬂ o o
Near Govind Garden, Jwalapur, Haridwar-249404 (U.K.) ‘ o
Email ID: info@hngpl.co.in, Phone No. 01334-220333, Website: www hngpl.in

CIN: U40300UR2016PTC007004, GESTIN/UIN: 05SAADCHETEON1Z0 23
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All the business activities contributing 10

Annexure-111

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on Financial Year ended on 31.03.2025

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 12(1) of the

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

U40300UR2016PTC007004

Registration Date

20/04/2016

Name of the Company

Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited

Category / Sub-Category of the Company

Company limited by Shares

V. Class of company Private Company
vi. Address of the Registered office and contact Haridwar Natural Gas Pvt Ltd — COCO- CNG
Details Station, Khasra No 569-570, Near Govind
Garden, Jawalapur, Haridwar, Uttarakha nd
PIN 249404
vii. Whether listed company No
viii. Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar | Not Applicable

and Transfer Agent, if any

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be

stated: -
S, |Name and Description of mainNIC Code of the Product/ % to total turnover of the
No. : corvice company
products / services
1 | Electricity, Gas, Steam and Hot water| 40 100

Supply
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1L PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE
COMPANIES: Not Applicable
Sr. Name And Address Of CIN/GLN Holding/ o of Applicable j
No. | The Company Subsidiar/ shares held
Associate Section
| |
V. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Break up as percentage of

Total Equityv})

i Category-wise Sharcholding

—

Category No. of Shares held at the beginning No. of Shares held at the end of the year %
ofthe year (As on 01-Aprit 2024} {As on 31-March-2025) Chang
e
during
the
year
De | Physical Total o of |Demat P Total o of
m | {inNos.) (n Amount) |Total h linAmount) | Tatal
Shares Y Shares
s
¢ c
! al
i
n
N
o
s,
; }
A, Promoter
1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF} - | - - - - - . B
hj Central Govt - | - - - - - - . _
¢) State Govt(s) -] - - - - - - - -
¢) Bodies Corp. - 14,35,80,000 [43,58,00,000 SO 1 35,80,000 - v3,58,00,000 50 No
1) Gail Change
Gas
Limited ]
1MBharat 4,35,80,000 |43,58,00,000 | 50 4,35,80,000 | - 43,58,00,000 | 30 [No
Petroleum Change
Corporation ;
Limited
e} Any Other J
: |
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Sub-total(A)(1):-

- 18,71,60,000

87,16,00,000

100

8,71,60,000

87,16,00,000

100

No
change

2) Foreign

N | NA

NA

NA

NA

NA [ NA

NA

NA

) NRIs-
Individuals

g) Other-
Individuals

h)Bodies
Corp.

i) Banks / Fl

j) Any Other....

Sub-total (A)

- |8,71,60,000

87,16,00,000

100

8,71,60,000

87,16,00,000

100

No
chan

ge

B. Public
Shareholding

NA

NA

NA

NA | NA

NA

NA

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / Fl

c) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture Capital
Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g) Flls

h) Foreign
Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(1)

2. Non Institutions

N [ NA

NA

NA

NA

NA | NA

NA

NA

a) BodiesCorp.
(i) Indian
(ii) Overseas
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b) Individuals

(i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
capital ypto Rs. 1
lakh

@) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal

share capital in
excess of Rs 1
ldh

c) Others (Specify)

Sub-total (B)(2)

Total Public
Shareholding(B)
=(B)(1) +(B)(2)

C. Shares held by
Custodian for

GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total - | 8,71,60,000| 87,16,00,000 100 8,71,60,000| - 37,16,00,000 [ 100 No
Chan

(A+B+C) ge

ii. Shareholding of Promoters

Shareholder’s Shareholding at the beginning of he Shareholding at the end of the
No Name year (01-April-2024) Year (31-March 2025)
No. of % of %of Shares  [No. of %of |%of Shares % change
Shares total Pledged/ Shares total  |Pledged/ in
Shares |encumbered Share |encumbered shareholding
of te to total s of |tototalshares during the
comp shares the year
any comp
any
GAIL GAS 4,35,80,000 50 4,35,80,000[ 50 - No Change
LIMITED
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BHARAT
PETROLEUM
CORPORATION
LIMITED

4,35,80,000

50 4,35,80

,000| 50

No Change

iii.Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): NOT APPLICABLE

sr. | A Shareholding at the beginning of | Shareholding at the end of the

no the year (01-April-2024) Year (31-March-2025)

P e R KD G shares . JIof fotaly — | 'No. of shares l% oftotal
shares of \shares of
thecompany | the

| B et | e | 3ok company

1. |GAIL GAS LIMITED

"~ |At the beginning of the year 435,80,000 [50.00% [ < F

| At the e;\d_gf e " = = | 4a35;3(jao_[)0_ _%007%_ i

L — ] - ]
2. | BHARAT PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED
At the beginning of the year | 4,35,80,000 50.00% 1 - =
At the end of year 3 - | ~ 14,35,80,000 [50.00% -
| totAL | 8,71,60,000 (100 178,71,60,000 100

Sl
No

For each of the Top [Date

10 shareholders

Reason |Shareholding at the beginning [Cumulative Shareholding
of the year during the year
No. of shares |% of total No. of shares 1% of
shares total
shares

At the beginning of
the year
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Date wise Increase/
Decrease in
Promeoters
shareholding during
the

year specifying the
for
increase/decrease

(e.g.

reasons

allotment
/transfer/

bonus/
sweat equities):

At the end of the
year

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: NOT APPLICABLE

SN

Shareholding of
each Directors
andeach
Managerial
Personnel

Key

Date

Reason

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

during the year

Cumulative Shareholding

% of total
shares

No. of
Shares

No. of shares

% of total
shares

At the beginning of
the year

Date wise Increase/
Decrease
Promoters
shareholding during
the
year specifying the
reasons
increase/decrease
(e.g.

_ allotment
Jtransfer/

bonus/

sweat equities):

in

for

At the end of the
year

¥,

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment:(Rs in Lacs)

INDEBTEDNESS

Secured
Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured

Loans

Deposits

Total

Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning d the

financial year

i) Principal Amount

9608.31

9608.31
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ii) Interest due but not paid
64.11 - - 64.11
iif)interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+ii) 9672.42 - 9672.42
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
- Addition 383.00 - 383.00
- Reduction /EIR Adjustments -1795.78 - -1795.78
Net Change -1412.78 - -1412.78
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
8208.40 - 8208.40
i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
51.24 = 51.24
iii) Interest accrued but notdue
B259.64 = 8259.64
Total (i+ii+iii)

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIALPERSONNEL

A Remuneration to Managing, Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: NOT
APPLICABLE
S.No. Particulars of Remuneration Total Amount
1 Gross salary NA NA
(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act,1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act,1961
(¢) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income- tax
Act, 1961
2. Stock Option NA NA
3. Sweat Equity NA NA
4. Commission NA NA
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
5. Others, please specify NA NA
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Total (A)

NA

NA

Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuner

jon to other directo

: NOT_APPLICABLE

i R i Total Amount
S.No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager A
Independent Directors NA NA NA NA NA
- Fee for attending
boardcommittee
meetings.
- Commission
- Others, please specify
Total (1) NA NA NA NA NA
Other Non-Executive Directors NA NA NA NA NA
- Fee for attending
boardcommittee
meetings.
- Commission
- Others, please specify
Total (2) NA NA NA NA NA
Total (B)=(1+2) NA NA NA NA NA
Total Managerial Remuneration NA NA NA NA NA
Overall Ceiling as per the Act NA NA NA NA NA
C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other than MD ‘Manager/WTD
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Sl.no| Particulars
Designation CEO CEO CFO CFO Company Total
(w.e.f (w.e.f (w.e.f (w.e.f Secretary
01.04.202atill | 30.04.202ati | ©01.04.20241tll [ 12.06.2024 till
29.04.2024) 31.03.2025) 12.06.2024) 31.03.2025)
Name Shri Mohit Shri Teekam Shri Rajesh Shri Naveen Sushri
Bhatia Singh Agrawal Kumar Shikha
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1. |Grosssalary 51.74 97.75 20.59 69.79 12.11 251.98

a) Salary as  per

brovisions  contained  in|

kection 17(1) of the

ncome-tax Act,1961

b) Value of|

berquisites ufs)

17(2)Income-tax Act,1961

(C)Profits  in lieu of

Kalary under section 17(3)

ncome-tax Act, 1961
2. [Stock Option NA NA NA NA NA
3. [Sweat Equity NA NA NA NA NA
4. |Commission NA NA NA NA NA

- as % of profit

-Others, specify...
5. [Others, please specify NA NA NA NA NA
6. Total 51.75 97.75 20.59 69.79 1211 251.98

e The remuneration to all the employees is as per the debit note received from promoters’ companies
and debit entry in accounting software.

VIL PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type Sectionof | Brief | Details of Penalty/ | Authority [RD | Appeal
the description | Made.
companies | ‘ Punishment | /NCLT/Court] If ay(give details)
Act : |
'| /Compounding feeél
' imposed |
A. Company
Penalty NA | NA ' NA | NA | NA
Punishment | NA | NA NA | 'NA %N'A_ el
WMLer ] TN IS e . IR L
Compounding| NA | NA NA | NA ' NA
i
B. Directors
Penalty NA | NA NA [ NA | NA
| |
e it s — e — st — ! — -
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Date: o?.q 0B.2025
Place: Uf)’%

Goutom Chakraborty
Chairman
DIN: 09027561

For and on behalf of
Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited

el

Punishment | NA ' NA NA | NA ' NA

Compounding| NA NA ' NA | NA | NA

C. Other Officers in Default

Penalty NA " NA NA " NA NA

Punishment | NA | NA NA ' NA ' NA

Compounding NA : NA_ 3 p NA_ _ NA [ _NA_ w1

by~

Ashish Goyal
Director
DIN: 09592775
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Annexure-1V

Particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties
Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including

certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

; 18 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the financial year
2024-25, which was not at arm’s length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis
SL. No. Particulars Details
1. Name (s) of the related party and | Gail Gas Limited
Nature of relationship Venture/ Promoter Company
Nature of (a) Agreement between Gail Gas Limited
(a) | contracts/arrangements/transaction and Haridwar Natural Gas Private

Limited for Compression & Associated
Services of Natural Gas for Dehradun |
(GA). '
(b) JV Agreement between Gail Gas
Limited and HNGPL for employees on
' deputation remuneration and other |
expenses. |
(c) Loanagreement of Rs.15 Crore with an
option to convert into equity
Duration of tie (a) The agreement is originally executed on
contracts/arrangements/transaction 11.06.2020 valid till 30" June 2022 and !
further extended upto 30" June 2023 |
and then further extended upto 30" June |
2024 and further extended upto 30"
June 2025. -
(b) As mutually agreed,
(¢) The agreement is entered on 25.03.2021
valid up to 5 years i.e.. till 25.03.2026
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Salient terms of the contracts or
arrangements or transaction including

the value, if any

(a) The Company and Gail Gas Dehradlﬂ
have a job work contract, wherein the |

Company is converting the Natural Gas
in Compressed Natural Gas.

Transaction during FY 2024-25 against |

Job work income is Rs. 68.67 Lakhs

(b) Expenses towards reimbursement of

employee remuneration on deputation is
Rs. 129.41 Lakhs

(¢) Inter-corporate loan at interest (@7.45%
p.a at par with 12 Month HDFC MCLR
+ 25bps refundable in 16 quarterly
instalments w.e.f June 2022 with an

option to convert into equity. (in FY

2024-25 interest @9.55% p.a) !
Transaction amount: Interest paid on |
Inter Corporate Loan is Rs. 57.25 Lakhs |
& Repayment of Intercorporate Loan is |
Rs. 375.00 Laklis.

Date(s) of approval by the Board

(a) Not Applicable since the contract was |

entered on arm length basis.

(b) NA

(c) Board approved Inter-Corporate loan on
18" February 2021 and the agreement
was entered on arm length basis at
interest @7.45% p.a at par with 12
Month HDFC MCLR Rate plus 25bps |
refundable in 16 quarterly installments.

Amount paid as advances. if any

NA

SL. No.

Particulars

Details

|

Name (s) of the related party

Nature of Relationship

Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited
Venture/ Promoter Company

Nature of
contracts/arrangements/transaction

(a) CNG Agreement between Bharat
Petroleum Coiporation Limited and
Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited

(b) JV Agreement between BPCL and
HNGPL for employees on deputation
remuneration and other expenses.

(¢) Loanagreement of Rs.15 Crore with an
- option to convert into equity. |
(d) Agreement between Bharat Petroleum
Corporation Limited and HNGPL for
RLNG BCC. i

i
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Duration of the
contracts/arrangements/transaction

(a) The agreement is originally executed
on 26th March 2019 for a period of 5
years. After expiration of 5 years.
contract is freshly executed on 23"
March 2024 for period of next 5 years
i.e upto 26" March 2029.

(b) As mutually agreed,

(¢) The 19.03.2021 valid upto 5 years i.c
19.03.2026

(d) The agreement is executed on
01.12.2024 and valid till 01.12.2029.

Salient terms of the contracts or
arrangements or transaction including
the value, if any

(a) As per the CNG Agreement the
Company is using the Retail Outlet |
Facility of BPCL for the sale of CNG. i
Further, other transactions like. |
Reimbursement of Employee |
Remuneration, Expense paid against |
Facility Charges. !

Transaction Value against Sale ol
CNG/CBG is Rs. 2635.79 lakhs and |
against Facility charges is Rs. 22.72
Lakhs.

(b) Expenses towards reimbursement ol
employee remuneration on deputation
is Rs. 234.61 Lakhs

(c) Inter-corporate  loan at  interest
@7.45% p.a at par with 12 Month
HDFC MCLR + 25bps, refundable in
16 quarterly instalments w.e.l' June
2022 with an option to convert into
equity (in FY 2024-25 interest
@9.55% p.a)

Transaction amount: Interest paid on
Inter Corporate Loan is Rs. 57.23
Lakhs and Repayment of
Intercorporate Loan is Rs. 375.00
Lakhs.

(d) Transaction Value against purchase of
RLNG BCC is Rs. 150.99 lakhs

Date of approval by the Board

(a) Not applicable since the contract was
entered into on an arm length basis.

(b) NA

(¢c) Board approved Inter-Corporate loan
on 18™ February 2021 and the
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Amount paid as advances, if any

(d)

NA

agreement was entered on arm length |
basis at interest @7.45% p.a at par with
12 Month HDFC MCLR + 25bps
refundable in 16 quarterly installments. i
The agenda was put up to the Board as ’
information agenda dated 27" Jap. !

2025

Name (s) of the related party

Nature of Relationship

Gail (India) Limitcd 1
Associate Company/Holding of Gail Gas |
Limited and  Bharat petroleum f
Corporation Limited. !

Nature of (a)
contracts/arrangements/transaction

(h)

(¢)

(d)

(e)

(H

Agreement between Gail India Limited |
and Haridwar Natural Gas Private |
Limited for purchase of APM & Non-

APM Natural Gas.

Agreement between Gail India Iimited |
and HNGPL for JCC GSA |
Agreement  between GAIL  India
Limited and HNGPL for RLNG H}I-] |
GSA. X |
Agreement between Gail India limited .
and HNGPL for RLNG-H[]-2 GSA |
dated 30.06.2023.

Agreement betveen Gail India Limited |
and HNGPL for Hooking up of

Shipper’s Facilities.

Agreement  between GAIL India i
Limited and HNGPL for RLNG HH-3 |
against the Mitigation of TOP. [
Other transactions such as supervision |
charges, gas loss recovery and ‘

permission charges.

Duration of the | (2)
contracts/arrangements/transaction

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

The agreement is executed on
16.05.2022 and valid till 06.07.2022 |
and further renewed till 06.07.2026. |!
The ~agreement is executed on .'
28.12.2021 and valid till 28.12.2026. '
The agreement is executed on |
12.10.2021 and valid till 12. 10.2024 |
and closed. '
The agreement is executed on
30.06.2023 valid till 30.06.2028.

The agreement is executed on ’
21.11.2016 for 10 years cxtendahlci
further. |
The agreement s executed  on |

3T
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P35

05.08.2024 and valid till 05.08.2029. |
(¢) Real-time transactions.

Salient terms of the contracts or
arrangements or transaction including
the value, if any

(a) The Company agreed to purchase Gas
from Gail India Limited as mutually
agreed agreement (a), (b), (c). (d) and i
(e) above: |

Transaction amount: Rs. 6858.73 Lakhs
towards purchase of goods and material. ‘

(b) Including in (a) above

(¢) Including in (a) above

(d)Including in (a) above

(¢) Expenses on account of hooking-up
Maintenance facilities Rs.20.05 Lakhs.

(f) Supply under said GA will commence
from August 2025.

(g) Other transactions include Security

against pipeline crossing of Rs. 2.00

Lakhs, Interest on late payment of Rs.

0.01798 Lakhs. and Permission charges

of Rs. 0.70 Lakhs, paid by HNGPL.

Date of approval by the Board

Not Applicable since the contract. was
entered into on arm length basis.

Amount paid as advances, if any

NA

4. Name (s) of the related party

Nature of Relationship

(a) Mr. Mohit Bhatia (CEO)

(b) Mr. Rajesh Agrawal (CFO)

(¢) Mr. Teekam Singh (CEO)

(d) Mr. Naveen Kumar (CFO)

(e) Ms. Shikha (CS)

(f) Mr. Ashok Chaudhary (Former
CEO)

Key Managerial Personnel

Remuneration

(a) Rs. 51.74 Lakhs
(b) Rs. 20.59 Lakhs
(c) Rs. 97.75 Lakhs
(d) Rs. 69.79 Lakhs '
(e) Rs. 12.11 Lakhs '

(f) Rs. 1.34 Lakhs b=

Date: 2.9.09: 2025
Place: Me‘;CLO-—

For and on behalf of
Haridp'arffh;ral Gas Pri?ate Limited
Golitom Chakraborty  Ashish Goyal
Chairman Director

DIN: 09027561 DIN: 09592775

38


38


Annexure-V

Format for the Annual Report on CSR Activities to be Included in the Board's Report for
Financial Year Commencing on or After 1st Day of April 2020

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

Reply: Comprehensive CSR Policy along with its vision and mission is given at link below:

https://hngpl.in/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/CSR-Policy.pdf

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

Sl. No. Name of Designation / |Number of meetings| Number of meetings of
Director Nature of of CSR Committee |[CSR Committee attended
Directorship |held during the year during the year

Reply: As per Companies (Amendment) Act, 2020, Clause 9, notified on 22.01.2021; where
the amount to be spent by a company under CSR provision does not exceed fifty Lakhs
rupees, the requirement for constitution of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee shall
not be applicable and the functions of such committee provided under this section shall, in such
cases, be discharged by the Board of directors of such company.

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.

Reply: The link of CSR Policy available at website is as follows:

htips://hngpl.infwp-content/uploads/2025/02/CSR-Policy.pdf

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule
(3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable
(attach the report).

Reply: Not applicable
5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies

(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the
financial year, if any:

Reply: NIL

SI. No. |[Financial Year [Amount available for set-off Amount required to be set-off for
from preceding financial years the financial year, if any (in Rs)
(in Rs)

1 12024-25 NIL INIL

Total L L

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 555.59 Lakhs

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 11.11 Lakhs
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(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial

years. NIL

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any : NIL

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c) : Rs. 11.11 lakhs

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:
Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
L:t::‘?g::hr: Total Amount transferred| Amount transferred to any fund specified under
. : to Unspent CSR Account| Schedule VIl as per second proviso to section
Financial Year. 2
(in Rs.) as per section 135(6). 135(5).
FY 2024-25 |Amount. Date of transfer.| Name of the Fund | Amount. | Date of transfer.
11,11,161 NIL NA IIT Roorkee 11,111,161 31.03.2025
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: NIL
M @ | (3 (4) (5) (6) (7 | (8 9) (10) (11)
SI./Name| Item | Local | Location |ProjectAmoun| Amou|Amount| Mode of Mode of
No|of the| from | area ofthe |duratio] t nt |transferr|lmplementat/Implementatio
Proje |the list|(Yes/N| project. n. |allocat|spent| edto |ion-Direct| n-Through
ct. of o). ed for | in the |Unspent| (Yes/No). |Implementing
activiti the |curren| CSR Agency
es in T project| t |Account
Schedu P (in [financi| for the il il
le VIl to € | Rs.). [al Year| project HHE: Mg ERIal)
the (in as per 0';"
Act. Rs.). | Section il
135(6)
(in Rs.).
NIL
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: NIL
M | @ (3 1@ (5) (6) (7) (8)
SI. No.| Name | Item |Locall Location of [Amount Mode of Mode of implementation -
of the |from the|area | the project. | spent |implementation| Through implementing
Project| list of |(Yes/ for the - Direct agency.
tivities| No). s j . 3 .
e l;:t'es o) State.District. (I?:;OF]{E;;. (¥eaiho) Name.| CSR registration
schedule number.
Vil to the
Act.
1. - < - L. - " - &
Total 5 & - = a % &

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA
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(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+Bc+8d+8e): Rs 11,11,161

(g) Excess amount for set off if any

SILN

0.

Particular

Amount (in Rs.)

(0]

Two percent of average net profit of the company as
per section 135(5)

11,11,161

(ii)

Total amount spent for the Financial Year

11,11,161

(iil)

Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)]

nil

(iv)

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or
programmes or aclivities of the previous financial
years, if any

nil

v)

\Amount available for set off in succeeding financial
years [(iii)-(iv)]

nil

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NA

Sl. No.

Year.

Preceding
Financial

Amount Amount Amount transferred to | Amount
transferred | spent in the |any fund specified under| remaining
to Unspent | reporting Schedule Vil as per |to be spent

CSR Account| Financial section 135(6), if any. in
under Year (in Rs.). succeeding
section 135 { Nama/of A_mount Date of financial
(6) (in Rs.) the |(in Rs). ftransfer. years. (in
Fund Rs.)

NA

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding
financial year(s): NA

M | @ (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)
SI. No.|Project| Name | Financial | Project | Total |Amount|Cumulative| Status of
ID. | of the Yearin |duration. amount |spenton| amount |[the project
Project.| which the jallocated  the spent at -
project was for the | project |the end of |[Completed
commenced. project | inthe | reporting |/Ongoing.
(in Rs.). [reporting| Financial
Financial| Year. (in
Year (in Rs.)
Rs).
NA

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so

created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: NA

(Asset-wise details).

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital assel(s): NA

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset NA

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is

registered, their address etc.: NA
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(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and

location of the capital asset) NA

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as

per section 135(5): NA

o\ S B
)
S/
Shri Teekam Singh Shri Goutom Chakraborty
Chief Executive Officer Chairman CSR Committee/Board
PAN: AFHPS5726D DIN: 09027561
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JAIN 10, Guru Mandal Ashram
%HEDAML&T&% Devpura, HARIDWAR-248 401
Phane : Off. 227281

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To

The Members,

Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited

(A Joint Venture of Gail Gas Ltd. & Bharat Petroleum Corporation Ltd.)
Registered Office at- COCO-CNG Station,

Jawalapur, Haridwar, Uttarakhand-249404

Opinion: -

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Mis Haridwar Natural
Gas Private Limited (“the Company”) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss {including other comprehensive income), stalement of
cash flows for the year then ended, Statement of Changes in Equity and notes to the
standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the Information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (the "Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended ("Ind AS"), of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2025 and iis profit (including other comprehensive income),
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis inion: -

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financlal statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further deseribed in the Auditor's

Respansitilities for the Audit of the standalone financial statements sechion of our repont. \We
are independent of the Company in accordance wi ode of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India together mm@%h?uimmem that are relevant to
our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements unfier ta-provisions of the Companies Act
2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulﬁi-h;g_ our gther ethical responsibilities in



ANIL JAIN & Co, 10, Guru Mandal Ashram

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Phone | O, 227281

accordance with these requirements and the Code cof Ethics. We believe that the audi
avidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matters

1. Slow-moving inventory for capital projects amounting to $208.09 Lakhs (aged over 3 years)
and non-moving inventory of capital projects (aged over 5 years) for ¥287.41 Lakhs
aggregaies ¥493 50 Lakhs as at the year end. The management has made no provisions
against the same; therefore, adequacy of provision cannot be substantiated. Refer Note
31.24 to the Financial Statermmeants.

2. The company has provided for employee benefits aggregate to  1.77 Lakhs on account of
Gratuity (31,40 Lakhs) and Eamed Leave Encashment (Z0.27 Lakhs), which is not in line
with provisions stated in Ind AS 19 — Employees Benefits as require by the Companies Act,
2013, Refer Mote 31.10 to the Financial Statemanis.

Qur opinion is not qualified in respect of the matters stated above.

Management's Responsibility for the standalone financial statements: -

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these standaicne financial
slatements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other Comprehensive Income, Changes in Equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepied in India. including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with tha provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities: selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequats internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial sla't&m&nl' i
Company’s ability to continue as a going canc
going concem and using the going concern:basis of

inagement is responsible for assessing the
sclosing, as applicable, matters related to
unting unless management either
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intends (o liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to
do s0.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

r's nsibil @ Audit of stan ne fi is: -

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor's repont that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance s a high level of
assurance but is not 2 guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered malerial if, individually or in aggregate, they could reascnably be expected to

influence the econemic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financaal
statements,

As part of an audil in accordance with SAs, we exsrcise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We are alzo:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statemants,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulfing from fraud Is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsibie for expressing our opinion on whather the Company has an adequate
internal financial contrals system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of dccounting policies used and the reasonablensss of
accounting estimates and related disclosures m : the management.
* Conclude on the appropriateness of man:a;zgﬁ use of the going concem basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence abtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
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relaled lo events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concarn. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are requirad
to draw aftention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 1o madify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
evenis or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concem.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the standalone financial
slatements, Including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentaton,
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
ndividually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements
in the standalene financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and fo communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matier ar when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Re Other Legal and Regulato irements: -

(1) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that

)
(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations whic:hr. )
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit =
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(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

{¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss {including the other
comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows dealt with by this report are in agreament with the books of account.

(d} In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.

(e} On the basis of the written representations recaived from the directors as on 31% March,
2025, taken on record by the Board of Directars, none of the directors is disqualified as

on 319 March, 2025 from being appeinted as a director in terms of Sub-section (2) of
section 164 of the Act.

() With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls aver the financial reporting
of the company and the operating effectiveness. of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure A’

(@) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report In accordance
with the requirements of secticn 197(16) of the Act, as amended. The company not being
Public Company, the provisions of section 157(18) are not appiicable.

(M) With respect to the other matters o be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given o us that:

' (i}  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

(i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracis
for which there were any material foreseeable losses,

(i} There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the ,!nmzstar
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. |, ?gal

L

2 __p
(v} As per the Management Representation, to the best of its knowledge and%aﬁ d

=
T

other than as disclosed in the notes to the account, no funds have been advanes 47
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{v) or loaned or invested | either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“intermediate”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend
ar invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoaver by or on
behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guaraniee, security
or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

{vi) As per the Management Represantation, to the best of iis knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in the notes to the account, no funds have been received by
the company from any persons or entities, including foreign entiies (“funding
parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in wriling or otherwise, that the
company shall, whether, direclly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the "funding party”
("ultimate beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the ultimate beneficiaries ; and

iviij Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances; nothing has come to their notice that has caused
them to believe that the represantations under sub-clause (iv) and (v) contain any
material misstatement

(viii) Since the company has not declared or paid dividend during the year, hence we
have not commented upon the compliance with section 123 of the Companies Act,

2013, in this regard, as this clause Is not applicable to the company for the
concemed financial year,

{ix) Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an
accounting software Tally for maintaining its books of account which has a feature
of recording audit trail (edil log) facility and the same has operated with effect from
1% April, 2024 for all relevant transactions recorded in the software throughout the
year. Further, during our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trall
feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit frail has been preserved by the
company as per the statutory requiremants for record retantion.

AT o
":' ¥ ™
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(2} As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 jssued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-saction (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013,

wie give in the ‘Annexure B’ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 & 4 of the
order.

(3) As required by Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 refer "Annexure C° attached.

For ANIL JAIN & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN : 000189C

A VLA
CA. ANKEKUMAR JAIN
PROPRIETOR

M.ND. 070253
UDIN: 2spSedti BNy LL TARI

PLACE @ 14 G [ i
DATE: X3-0w. &g
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ANNEXURE "A' TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act')

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Mis Haridwar
Natural Gas Private Limited {'the Company") as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our
audit of the Standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended and as on that
date

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financal
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the ‘Guidance MNote’). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operaling effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business. including
adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of itz assats, the prevention and detection
of frauds and efrors, the accuracy and completenass of the accounting records, and the timely
preparalion of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the *Guidance
Nole”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the exient applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note requira that we comply with the
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reascnable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effect,iﬁlﬁiﬁﬂ material respecis.
s " :
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Cur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial contrels over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a matedal
weakness exists, and lesting and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’

judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone
financial statemenis, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial contrel over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detall, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company, (2) provide reasonable assurance that fransactions are recorded as necessary
io permit preparation of Standalone financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material efiect on the
Standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financlal Controls Over Financial Re porting

Because of the inherant limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial contrals over financial reporiing may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate. P e
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Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the

Company has maintained, in all material respects, adequate intemal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial

controls over financial reporting with reference fo these financial statements were operating
effectively as of March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institule of Chartered Accountants of India

For ANIL JAIN 8 CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN : 000188C

M&W+

CA. ANILKEMER JAIN | *-‘*_-u
PROPRIETOR

M.NO, 070253
LIDIM ® 238 3«0 CnBmriy L L3398

PLACE : Has iovr Al
DATE @ 23-0U 22 3(
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ANNEXURE ‘B' TO INDEP UDITOR'S REPORT

Statement referred to in paragraph 2 under the heading "Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date to the members of Haridwar

Natural Gas Private Limited on the accounts for the year ended as on 31st March,
2025,

In terms of the information and explanation given o us and the books and records

examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

() (&) In respect of Property, Plant and Equipment; -
(A) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quaniitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment
(B) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assels

(b) These Property, Plant and Eguipment have been physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals, which in our opinion is reasonable having
regard to the size of the company and nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, we report that the title deeds of all the
immovable properties (Other than properties where the Company is the lessee and
the lease agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee) disclosed in the
financial statements are held in the name of the company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. Therefore, the
pravisions of clause (i)(d) are not applicable to the company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, we report that no proceedings have been
Initiated or are pending against the company for hdiging any Benami property under the

A

“Benarmi Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 198&a |Rutles made there under.

L
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() {a) The physical verification of inventary other than Natural Gas has been conducied
at reasonable intervals by the management and in our opinion, the coverage and
procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate; No discrepancies

of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were not noticed on
physical verification,

As explained 1o us, having regard to the nature of the inventory of natural gas,
management has followed policy for estmation of natural gas quantities which is
based on volume of pipelines and the volume of cascades containing the natural gas
considering standard temperature and pressure whereas cpening stock of gas has
been arrived at on the basis of book balances since as per the management it is not
possible as gas is flowing conlinuously in pipelines.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, we report that during any paeint of time of
the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of
%5 Crores, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security
of current assets; Therefore, the provisions of clause (ii)(b) are not applicable to the
company, hence not commentad upon.

(ily  During the year the company has not made investmeants in, provided any guaraniee
or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured 1o companies, firms, Limited Liability partnerships or any other parties.
Therefore clauses (iii), of the order are not applicable to the company, hence not
commented upon,

(W) In our opinion and according to Information and explanation given to us, the
company has not granted Loans & Advances, made Investments or provided
guarantee or security to any party to which the provisions of Section 185 and
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 apply, Therefore, the provisions of clause
(iv) of paragraph 3 of the CARQO 2020 are not applicable to the company, hence not
commented upon.

(v)  According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no deposits
accepled by the Company or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Therefore,

the provisions of clause (v) of paragraph 3 nftha CARO 2020 are not applicable to
the company, hence not commented upon. - ot >



ANIL JAIN & Co, 10, Guru Mandal Ashram

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Devpura, HARIDWAR-245 401
Phone ;. Off. 227281

(v} According to the information and explanation given to us, Central govemment has
specified the maintenance of cost records u/s 148(1) of companies act, 2013 and
such records have been made and maintained.

{vi) In Respect of Statutory Dues: -

(a) Accarding to the records of the company, the company is generally regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, Income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duly of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues with
the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanation given to
us, no arrears of outstanding statutory dues are pending as at the 31st March
2025 concerned for a peried of more than six months from the date, they became
payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no statutory
dues refarred to in sub-clause (a), which have been deposited on account of any
dispute.

(viii)  According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no transactions
which are nol recorded in the books of account that have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1861, Therefore, the provisions of clause (viii) of paragraph 3 of the CARO 2020
are not applicable to the company, hence not commented upon.

(ix)(a) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender. Therefore, the provisions of clause (ix)(a) are not applicable
to the company, hence not commented upon.

(b} According to the information and explanation given to us, the company is not a
declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.
Therefore, the provisions of clause (ix)(b) are not applicable to the company,

(¢) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has
applied term loan for the purpose for which they are obtained.

c) According to the information and explanation given touus, the company has not
raised any short-term funds. Therefore, the pravigions of clause (ix)id) are not
applicable to the company., o bk Py
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(e} According to the information and explanation given o us the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity cr person on account of or to meet the obiigations of
s subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Therefore, the provisions of clause
(ix){e) are not applicable to the company.

(f) According to the information and explanation given to us the Company has not
raised loans during the year on the pledge of securiies held in its subsidiaries, Joint
veniures or associate companies. Therefore, the provisions of clause (ix)(f} are not
applicable to the company, hence not commented upon.

(%) (@) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (Including Debt instruments) during the year. Accardingly, paragraph 3(x)(a) is
nol applicable to the company, hence not commented upon.

{x}{a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us no
fraud/misappropriation on the company has been noticed or reported during the
year,

(b} Na report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act is filed by
us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 12 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rule, 2014 with the Ceniral Government.

(e) According lo infomation given to us, there are no whistla-blower complaints
against the company.

(i)  The company is not a Nidhi Company. Accardingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is
not applicable to the company, hence not commentad upon.

{xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with
related parties are in accordance with Section 177 and Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and delails of such transactions have been disciosed In the
Standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards,

(] (&) The company has established an internal audit system commensurate with the
size and nature of its business.
{b) The reports of the Internal Auditor issued for the F Y. 2024-25 were considerad
by us,
ATNE
{(xv)  According to the information and explanati 3 given to us, the Company had not

entered into any non cash transactions with dir ‘or persons connected with him,
- I?..:.d
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Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the company, hence
not commented upon,

In our epinion, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Accordingly, paragraphs 3(xviy{ayib){c)/id) of
the Order are not applicable to the company, hence not commented upon.

Accerding to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
Incurred cash losses in the Financial Year and in the immediately precading financial
year.

There has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

Accordingly, paragraph 3(xviii) of the Order Is not applicable to the company, hence
not commented upon.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial statements, in our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans, we are of the opinion that no matenal uncerainty exists as on
the date of the audit report that company is nol capable of meeting its liabilities

existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date.

According to the information and explanations given fo us, the company has
complied with the provisions of section 135 of Companies act, 2013 applicable fo the
company and there is no unspent amount in case of any project which is required to
ransferred to any fund specified in schedule VIl of the companies act or special
account under sec 135(6) of said act. Therefore, clause (xx), of the order Is not
applicable to the company, hence not commented upon,

r i -"'.l-\.
s -
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(xxii} As per our opinion and to the best of our knowledge, there are no Subsidiaries, Joint
venture or Associate companies of tha audites company. Therefore clause (xxi), of
the order is not applicable to the company, hence not commentad upon,

For ANIL JAIN & CO,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN : 000189C
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DATE : 2a.6u. 2035
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Annex

- C to the

ndent Auditors’' Report of

Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited

For the year ended on 31* March 2025

DIRECTIONS UNDER SECTION 143(5) OF COMPANIES ACT,

2013

| S
i

MNo.

Directions

2

Auditor's Remarks

Impact on
Financial
Statements

Whethar the company has
system in place to process all
| the accounting transactions
thraugh IT systern? If yes, the
implications of processing of
accounting transaction cutside
IT system on the Integrity of
the accounts along with the
financial implications, if any,
may be stated

On the basis of information and explanation
gven to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of company, the
company has system in place 1o process all
the accounting transactions thraugh IT system
Le., Tally Pime. However, for the purpose of
biling to cuslomers, a8 specialised ERP
gystem namely ERP billing system from M/s
Vailbhu Infra Tech India Pwvt. Lid. is in place.
On the basis of audit procedures carried on
the IT systems, our opinion is that all

accounting transaction recorded in separate
billing software is duly recorded in Tally Prime |
{Accounting Software). However, there are |
certain transaction in ERP (Billing software) |
which are 1o be reconciled as enumerated In
Annexura-1.

Rs. 1.144
Lakhs

Whether there is any
| restructuring of an existing
loan or cases of waveriwrite
| off of debts/loans/interest ate.
| made by a lender to the-
company due to the
company's inability to repay
the loan? If yes, the financial
impact may be stated,

According to the information and
explanations given to us and based on the
examination of the records, there are no
restructuring of lean or cases of waiveriwrite
off of debisf/loansfinterest stc, made by a
lender to the company due o the
company's inability to repay the loan during
the year under audit, Hence no comments
are made on requirement of Direction No 2.

MIL

Whesther funds (grants /
subsidy etc.)

We have been informed that no smh_ﬁ
-':.' _.--"‘_FFF':F'

(grants / subsidy etc) have been .
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specific schemes from
CentralfState Governmant ar

| receivedirecaivable from central/state

agencies. Hence no comments are made on
reguirement of Direction Mo 3.

Itz agencies were properly
accounted for/ ublized as per
its term and conditions? List
the cases of deviation,

|

For ANIL JAIN & CO
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN : 000188C
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e R
WA
CA. ANIL Ku ;

PROPRIETOR

M.NO. 070253
UDIN: 25343 A MANALLISE]

PLACE : 1A viusr as,
DATE : 27%3-04k se3q
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Livas avn Wi o o) A
Froteion For Doubrful Dnbs {Diandiresd i 30!
Inferegt o MEME cradtors |Diesiowess we 17)

Infierea an FOHE (Tasasts @t IFOS)

Recoenry froem Dousdul Dsstar
Cmpracaion as per Incoma Tas Aot 1950

Bundrenn loss Frivioes Yeat

IEorms: From CHier agerces

Saf gl aBow ko Loss af PGEP
Groas Totsl incoms

Total Income wa PES A

Tax Payakds Q5w

Bad: Bairekacga

#Add HEALTH & EDUCATION CESS i 4%
Tatal Income Tax Payabis

Az por B -118.08 ol income Tax Ace, #8617 (Minirmum ARsmatiag Tas)

Pt Prikl i, par Splemesd of Dol andl Lok

Dwprocinton deisiled s P& L 4k
Irrier st o7 TS { | ncome Tax
Prrowiaion for Doutrtal deons
Plrzia bl Fon bnocins fax

Depreciion Jebeed 1o & & L Al o
- Earhatineg Cais
N Tax FEnfenpss

BiF lons or Yrebsortad Dapeiubon whichover ia inss as per Backs of Acesonts

T igan
Pricr Parind Expacass

Bk Profit se per S 1818
Fgwnd off ws 280 A
Tan Payabie wi 116 J§

Add: Surcnprge T%
Aadd: HEALTH & BDUCATION CEBB @ 45

A~ D03

BB BET

£ 00 A7 SebE
BE
33 444
LR ET T
THEAE
arsm
H0 654
L 5E 00
- 58533521
14,3020, 108
BEEQ A5
% B8, 560
1.5 B 30,85
155280 015

-1 94,52 BT
104, 52.087

EL L]
bl O]

.02, e SET

k]
i 52 dva
x B2

LR

98 58

18 47570

%90, 47070

1.37,7T.061
884,204
b EGiB5E

1,43,31.113
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Haridwar
LA IV o GATL Gay LimBed ard BRscst Setrslsom Corporatian
EngHETdred OMcn ¢ CODD-CME Skathen, Mhagrs b,

BALANCE SHEET AE AT J1st MARCH" 32§

Lisuiady
565570, Masr Goving Garden, Mwalager, Hardwar, Ustsrakhand- 245404

(€ in Lakh)

Parihiales r A at Bilwl March 2035

By 50 31T MEFER 2039

ASEETS
I} |Mor-Currand Akiats

PLacE 1 Mo j B
DATE | 3T5-gly lmd

Vdm, QTcHrgiBmmgiL FAE)

Fa% Propeety. il and Bauioereni X T8 21643 13,080 &1
[y Confa Work-in-moaqress 2 1.547.80 B, H.EY
e Trbanable sspets T 1.8 i k]
{d} Rinhn of Lg Assets 3 15007 11373
Pl Financal ALseis
1] Trade Recspvabies [ I3a3 AT 5
(18] Drthier Currant FRanEil Anksk 1 L
Hon Corrant Azswty (A Fim B= 3% 1B84.B4 TR R
111 |[Currand hpsats
Ha'l Inveritaries 5 1187 11i.08
(01 Finaacial Asseis
am CEEA T L14.8%
7 HEEES 55753
Hi) Henk Batnces oohdr Usan et and Tash Basivatens B . T26.8%
{12} Cther Cumeed Frnaecal daast 2 349 23T
(0 Curremi Tox: Agsers (oL 1] REE 1B 1BL 02
[dy Db Curmsst Han FRancal AlGHE i1 pE T
Tatal Ciorrant Asssts (8 1 ull FEIFETE
T S FERELN b TR
EQUITT AND LIABILITIES
Erusdy
|1:II Esidity Trure Capcsd 13X B, 716,00 L P e
1) Crher Bowie £y fr g _ NRPEG
Tokwl Bquity (€ T % AR W81 3.86 |
LEABILTIES
iTh | Mon- Corrmnt Liphilicies
A Frinassal Lekilgies
1) Barrasrings: T ] LEF K ] #.8R6.3]
Gil) | pase Limbd|tes 15 17 53 1513
filil Trade Pavabies
Cihesr bran Micra arad Sevall Eodevoe LA T 355 18
=FILID i) Segl) Prberprrses 1HA =
:;!ll;r EI’.-HI'I! i ThA Sy 1L1¥
& el taw Hlsdd (Wies ¥ E ] a
Tetal Mo Curvens Linbsties (07 L Lﬁ _Hgi
TITh | Currint Liabilitiss
V&l Finaieial Ligbidities
[1} Earmearng i 1,794,100 1, P800
8] Lommw iiwaiiriey ir 135 5%
| Trage Payalies
-ditAanr than Moy and Smael Enlerirasa Lan F00:05 8347
-Migre and Gmsll EMeigrees Lin 2.0% -
o [t fnencia! Lisgilgie [T 117247 i, ui e
81 Meprataicrs jgm B19.5% 55497
] Sty Curninl Mos Sinencin? Liski s i | L AL |
Tobsl Current LispEinies (€1 3 TEN. A8 |
Thv # R FLAE) FIL
Signficant sccoancing eolicies i
Woies to Acoswunts s B0
Tha stcomparging rotes L i 39 | part of thene Napncisd SATETSALE.
FOR B ON LF OF BARD OF &S per Dwr Heoport on even dets
ey 4 Far &nil Iain B €o.
L, ¥ e
W h
CED
PAM-ATRPHOIIIG PAN -« AFHPSSTIED
i - L f,..r""ﬁ w
Ajar Tinha Eaushih Milra Axhinh Gyl
DIABITGR DTRAFCTOR
DTN | DESEE F3F OTM : 16769334 BN : DESWITTS
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HErdWar BElUFe Gas Privato Limitsd
LA I of GAIL Goa Limdbed and Blharae Petrobsurs Corporation Limtad}
Registared Office : COCO-CHG Station, Khasra Ma, S68-570, Binps Gowind Gargen, Jwaisper Hacidvwaern, Uiargdhond- 245404

STATEMENT OF PROFTT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ERDING A% 0M J16T MARCH 3035

| & Lakch )
Figures for the ¥aar Figures far the Year
sarticulsey Pots Mo, | snded o8 o Jist March | anded as gn 31st March
205 J0T4
L} Rewpnua from opsratices 3 11,592.720 Lo,58a.17
IT,| Sther Incoma 123 k] 158 17
L. Total Incomie (1+1L) . : TLEEE 5% 18,157 54 |
V.| Expanans
Gar Consumed Ia B TR BT B HE 04
Ewcie aa DR Siler b CHG 1ok work 1,014.52 Y EEL TS
Fmpayoss Bane't Evpancen 25 1516 5D
Inewamg ¢ (Pocreass] in [regimary pic (OLAX] LB
Flinance Cokta ar B2i.gr . {a
Dprecistion and drmeriizaimn Expesse E ] 557,41 455 AR
Oher pupanEe I8 Ir“'ﬂ_-gg 180014
Totmi Expgnses [IV]) 10 T80 TF | 1035740
Hj:ﬁﬂml gefore Excepbongd [ems and tex (L1 #0385 A00.05
V1| Excaptioas Evpeses
¥11| Frofefioss bafors @ (W-VI) [ 14 : BO0L05
WIIN| Tex Faperses
[ 17 Currat Tac - 158 B0
[} Disfarred Tas 30 Fad a0 b
[F) Current Tax Enpinsas reliced (o Prigr Tosr (34 Fa) [16E.88)
Profit /' {Loss] fer the penad from Cantnuing i = =
K| Cipmrpkiea PWIT-VIIDN 90 M Bt 15
K| Pofinf Lo rem Discnnbnse Qoerstam =
KI| Taa Enpeess of Drécomsimed Dperations
Frofit /) {Liss) roen DEsconzinusd Dgersbsas (1 fer
MK emad FE-XTH =
XN Pealth/[Loam] fo Bep yonr (IX+XTT) #9374 556 1%
KOV | Crher Cprmgrehen sive [eorm
{A) (1) Therees thay will net be réclassded te proiit ar
[T H .
(11l Income tax meaing m s that sl noksa
=g ol Dl
{8 {i] Tma i well be reciscsifed to profit o logs . " -
{w] bncuene tus relpking 1 the fome T will e
et assilind 16 profe or ke
| DR LT prafmnaneg sNEQme T INE PERIBELLILL+ K17 )
{Compricing profu/ s} sed ntser Comprehansiue
W [Incoma fay the yeai) .28 Fo 15
XWE| Earning per sqeky phede -in ¥
1] Bamic sgrning oor cham of B 18 Garn Fl 0%t .53
[} Ditutsd sarning cer share of R, 10 sach F o] 0.5L i.5d
The sccompanying notes 1 to 30 pRiT ol thids Ariancial siatemenis.
FOR & ON OF BOARD OF DI Az ser Our Rasort cn even
1 aitmried to Balanoe
o, :
ey r for Anil Join & Co,
Karnar T Bigh - Arraimtants
o CED (=1 - i O 1EYC
PAN-AIRPKDITITG PAM - AFHPSS T80 Pb-

SinhR Eaughik Mitra Azhish Goval “FL, Anil Kurnas in
BIRECTSR DIRECTOR Propristor
BN | SESASTET DIN 1 10769334 DIN : 09592775 Mambarship Mo, DTRIEE

PLACE : H“‘EL‘:“E‘I‘.& 20 T LB MNLL LT E]




Haridwar Matural Gas Private Limited
{A ¥ of GATL Gax Limited snd Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited)
Registered Office ; COCO-CNG Station, Khasra Mo, 563-570, Mear Govind Garden, Jwalapur, Harldwar, Lrtta rakhand-240404

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING A5 ON 318T MARCH 2025

{® b Lakh]
. Figures for tha ¥Year anded ae| Figures for the Yeasr snded
-t on 31st March 2025 as on 315t March 2024
i, CASH FLOWE FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
1. Net profits | loss ) before tax as per stetement of Pralit & Loss
Continding Operatian = 00.05 ROO- {15
Prafit Before Tax [0, 35 B0 (k5
2. Adjusted for ;
Papreciation amd amgetisation Exparse 557.41 agr. T
Lags an Write off of Asser 4l 3265
Financ# Coss B2i.67 74200
3. Dperating profitS (logs) betfors working capital changes 2,281,823 207271
4. Changes in working cagital
Trade & Other Recesvables (105, 20N RLIE
[rveentonas I'I:I.J'B-'lr 046
Trade & Other Payables cacluding Current matilites o koan ' 2B T [3163.58)
L4367 = 3115
5. Cash generated from operations (3441 Z,825.49 2,103,856
&. Direct mxes paid {net of refunds) [ 165.52] [E00. 82
Wat cash generated ) { used in) from aperating activities (S3+46) T illllrﬁl 2 003,04
B. CASH FLOWSE FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchass of Fixed Assels excluding Right of use Axsets {1 050.8B2] Y. ms
Mot cash ganerated/ {used in) Investing activitles ﬂm @ﬁ‘
€. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Shara Apphcatian Money I
Payrment af kease Rabites L LS .31
Proceeds from benk loens 11,399,591} {1,678 60
Finudnns Cost (B .7l (T2 .05
Met cash generated ! [used in) from Mnancling activities [2,315.83) (241036
Mat increase/ [dacraase) in cash and cash squlvalants [A+8+C) [CEEN YA [L322.17)
Cagh ard cash aquniaiets at the Begitning of the yagr 128436 2000 o
Cash ard Casn oouuaicnts at the end of the reporting period BAS 50 L.Xh4 36
Cash and bank balances as per balance shees BEE.GO 1,484,056
Mata:= Indiract Method Followed
The accompanying nobes 1 to 30 are integral part of these financial ststemants,
FOR & ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DI RS Ax per Owr Reporl on even dabe

attached to Balance Sheaal

.rj .
o C"ﬂv""?’ SW For Anll Jaln 8. Co.
- o - J Charte cooun Lenls
i Jos®™ o FRN: 000189¢
Mawean r Teskam Singh
cFO CED !
PAN-AIRPKDI32Q PAN - AFHPSSTZE0 |‘£
f)\}ﬁ E/ et i
Ajay Sinha Waushik Mitra Ashish Goval 3"
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR . CA. Anil Kumar Jain
DINM : DESRST2T EN : 10789334 DIN : 9392775 DN PFroprietor
; Mumbarship No, 070253
; UBIN:
PLACE : :
BATE : 308t Lo2E 25030361 e nXLL FA 8]
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Haridwar Wetural Ges Prooais Limsad
[& 7 al GAIL Gas Umded pnd Bharat Préroleum Corporaticn Limiced)
STATEMENT O0F CHAMGES [N THE BQUITY SO VEAN ENDIHG &S Ok 15T MARCH 7025

A b B

DTN : OHSESTIT

OTRELTO
DM ; 10765354

D1M : OUSR2TTS

£ io bbb}
Changes in Eguity
Rulanios ot the Lak dpril, 1024 ﬁ:‘mﬁ ¢ e o | RELEUOG Bafanca ut| Share Capieat dring | Balanc ms ot
prior pariod arrer | ¥ 181 Apeil, 3024 llh.-l.r;;..—:uu— Jist March, 3035
#.708.00 - B 716.00
TR LT IR e
Changes in [gulky
Balarca ab the Lut dpeli, 2023 .E:“hw- Resiated balaree af | Shors Capitsl dueispg | SslEnos 3d 6t
; “'HI srrnp | e 18t Apcl, 2o@d rmuq::rﬂﬂ- A 3¢ March 024
LR R HE CVF N B YR
(Reporting Patba v.v z036-25 ;
o =
= Aplication | Touily Companant n-i?!.-dg& TR
ury Funding w Ll e Securities [P j— Total
allgemany mh';rn:n —— LT Earnings w“
[ Ralaacy at the baginning of tha ] =
reporting peced B3 ai L5t Al . - B7.R6 £57.86
e I S il o LLLLIF
L prior period erroes & 5
AEFLrED Balsace at the
.Y !"il.ll.l.!::l LTI BO7.AS
Tetal Trenema o |
the I.Y 2934-25 - o u.: | LIS
Dovidands : -
Traasler to relsiesd camings i | b l I
Afiy gthar change [Trid. to Share | |
b e ol | B e Ml | [EE —, fard = ekl | ;
.l-ll-lulhh:ﬂ 'urtlm.n :I-I'H : 5 - : = LaeLEd - | vasssa |
| Eeporting Period LY. 2033-24
[ in Laki)
Money Bending of € ommpes nd L F m - ok ot st .
ehimnad Tuknl
—— kit e R et Premium Esnings |  comorehamsive .
Bslance gt the beginning of | {
_r-_qmﬂn;p-u (4 .ruh«':.::-af' i sl E L Bl LI
Charges m eccounting pAIlCE or
pring palvised fresrs - 1 |
Restated halanee at the =
=.'|" m“j-:ll‘ » 4 3% 11,74 4,377, 7 |
[Yobal Comprehansivs Tncam far S |
i FY 202934 TS — 396.15
- - e AL o
[Framafer ta retmined eamings L
Aoy st oha b
specily) ki B T {4,2:74.00]
" 2 .
Tl i | AT - - i = |
Tiss scroanpanying Noses 1 e 3 part of thess finencial ECEIEMGILE.
FOR & OM BE OOARD SF B W At ger Our Reper an wvan dete,
@ LT -4‘ e
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Haridwar Matural Gas Private Limitod

(A JV of GAIL Gas Limited and Bharat Petroleum Corperation Limited)

Note-4 NON CURRENT ASSETS - FINAMCIAL ASSETS - OTHER CURBENT FINANCIAL ASSET (¥ in Lakh)
A at st Ag nf I1=t
I
cladasto o March’ 2025 | March' 2024
Security Daposit
Conaidered good- Sacured =
Considered good- Unsecursd 1.50 ~
oial L. -
Mote-5 INVENTORIES (% in Lakh)
As at 3lst s at 31t
|
Farticuiars March’ 2025 | March’ 2024
(A= taken, valued and certified by tha management)
Stock in Trade *
Matural Gas 6.54 5.73
Finished Gaonds
Compressed Matiral Gas 1.51 .58
O8&M Stock
DM Stock 1.72 2 48
[Total 11,87 11.00
Mote-6A TRADE RECEIVABLES - NON CURRENT (% in Lakh)
Az at Iist As at Tist
Particulars HMarch® 2025 | March' 2024
Trade RAeceivables -
Secured and Considered good
From Relaked Parties 3 -
From Others 4,54 -
Unsecured and Considerad good
Fram Related Parties 0.36 -
Fram Dthers 28_3R 42 05
Having significant increase in Credit Risk
Credit Impaired 39.44 20.43
Lesa: Allowance for deubtful debts (39, 44) (20.43)
[Tatal 33147 A2.05
MNote-68 TRADE EECE?HLE_E—_EUHREHT [T in Lakh)
As at 31st As at 3ist
YRt March' 2025 | March’ 2024
Trade Recedvahles -
Secursd and Considersd good
From Related Partles r -
From Others 209,51 i175.09
Unsecured and Considered good
From Related Parties 137,16 105.67
Fram Others 18048 234.06
Having significant increase in Credit Risk
Credit Impalred 7549 12.26
Less: Allowance for doubtful debis [7.58) [12.25]
i
ol 527.18 514.82)
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Haridwar Hatural Gas Private Limited

(A IV of GAIL Gas Limited and Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited)

Note-7 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS [¥ in Lakh)
IFEH'HI:LHI!I. As at 31st AS 2T Zlst
March' 2025 |March' 2024
Cash on hand 11.52 9,73
Balances with Banks
=CLrment Accounts 143 49 122.15
-Fixed Depose 510 BA 435.65
[Talal 665,69] 557.53
Mote-8 BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {® in Lakh)
s sk Jist Az gt JLsk
PRI March’ 2025 | March' 2024
Other Bank Balances
- Term Depost -HRFD with matunty more than three montns 152.41
- Term Depast -HOFC with matusity more than three months hesd & margin monay 10,01
Term Depoxt -ICICLE with maturity more than three months S5E4.41
Total 72683
MHote-% CURRENT ASSETS - FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHER ltuH-HEHT FINAMNCIAL ASSET { € imnLakh)
: A5 at 31at | As at Iisi
Eolch March' 2025 |March’ 202a

Security Deposit
Cansidared good- Sacured

.7

Cangidered good- Unsacured 329
Tatal 3.29 2.77]
Mote-10 CURRENT TAX ASEET (NET] (e M
Az at 31st A5 at 31st
PARTICULARS March' T02S | March' 2024
[Provesion far Current Tax [AY 2024-25) 13567 136,60 |
Provimion Far Current Tax [AY 2025-26) 124 .55 S
Total (&) F63.R3 13880
ThS Aeceivable (AY 2034-25) £ i gl 30.6E
TS Recaivable (&Y F0F5-26) 1736
Self Assesoment Tax (&Y P0P&-2025) 121
Anvance [ncome Tax (AY 2024-2025] 105.040 105. 60
Advance Income Tax (AY 2025 2026] 145, 04
HAT Cradit Entitlemend A 30,94 16517
Current Tax Assels {8} F32.12 3032.87
CURRENT TAX Assots (NET) (B-A) ABE.15 164.03 |
Note-11 OTHER CURRENT NOMN FINANCIAL ASSETS (% im Lakh})
Az at 31st | As at 31st
Parti
Sean i March' 2025 | March' 2024
Prepaid Expenses 31.B7 41, 20
G5T RBecalvable 2.52 0.43
Exciie Duby (PLA) - 2,55
Amount Recoverable fram 5 H.O Kapasheda {Police Stakion] Dalhi 0.39
|Revenue Accrued but not dug il.12 11,12
Advance to Suppliers Q.30 6. B6
D5 Recowerable from Vendars . 10.62 3.32
[Total e . 65 .87
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HEriiee Makardl GiE Privila Lenied
A Foied Wesiyre of Q1L Gas Lim®ed mnd Bharpl Petrelenm Corporalss kimilod

MaOts-13 BQUITY SHARE CARTTAL

1ha dstharisad, iwsusd, suBscribed god fully pli -ua shers cagiial comarises o shares having & @ir value of F 10/« asch an

Equity Sharey aoted
(@ i Lakh]
PANTICLLARE Az 8t F1st Harch | A af 3l March'
. FH L]
| Aaglianlaed Shars sagfial
S0 DY Wity Shaees o @ 10J- ach 0 | 04 |
B B0000 Bgquiy Sheres: of F 10y gach B.7LR M, 718
[P Vil 30150000 Eguity Shares of ! i0i- mach!
Tatsl F B, 718 |

Fnfe-1i[a) Recesdiliation of the aumber sharm snd smount setstanding at thie heginning nnd gnd of the year

Particulary B YT T R —
LD 3 MiimBar af
srares [intasn)| (FI0LARR] o e (i abny | 1€ Lak)
CREPR S PAnnD W T8 DR & Dy BFL. B0 B LR T 1,440
Srulrie iviered tarian the year ] ' AT ED LE
Sharea Braaht bock durne Hhe ges ;
Sty optatanding of the ood aT ihe yess [ LIN 1 T [ET 7|
Bnre 13[h] - Shared a (R S3Sdicyy hald by &30h sharshslder Poifing mars than € pescanl sheats ppssilying 1he nymbes of
i Pl m A v o
An wt 31at March 2008 Ba wt J0al BAmrch’ 2034
Mams al the Suisshaldsr Murroer af Wb @
Snarws {inLain)| ¥ TG | e (i Laany | O Helding
Bharal Psireleum Corpormzen dmged 43580 B, 135 0s S0
L 475 50 S 433.85 i
FMote 13 {¢] Sharehoidisg of Fromoter of the omd of year
Murroe af " of kokel o CrE g
Fam=ter Harma
Sheres |in Lakn) Shares during e pear
1. Bidiimn PELiRewin Larp shs Linbie L] T [°T]
L (aa Leviiad EELH o) Ero ]
EFLB0 iboe
Motei3 STHER SQUITY L€ in Caxn
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Hairithrar Maluenl Gom Privake Liessd
A mind wendure of GAIL Gas Limited pod Bharat Petroisun Corparstion Limited
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Haridwar Matural Gas Private Limired
LA IV of GAIL Gas Limited and Bharat Patroleum Corporation Limited)

Mote-22 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Figures for tha Year

(€ in Lokn)
Figures for the Year

PARTICULRS ended 35 on 31ak snded oz en Jisi
March 2025 March 2024
a1 Salm of Gas [CRG and DPRG) induding axcisa dufty 11.231.76 10 260068
(b} Other operating Revenus {Rafer to Note 2213) Betow) 451.03 FB.49
atal 11,502.70 10,985,17
Moke-23{a) Other oparating Revenue

Flgures for the Year

Figurés for tha Yaar

PARTICULRS endnd &5 0n J1st andad e on I1st
Miprch 2025 March Zoz4

Service Charaes on Gas obwiork 379,53 G657 .44
Applicabon Foes - [nocme .37 028
Chegus Beturm Charges 040 0.45
intt, & Other Charges Raceived on Gas Salg 12.04 LE.22
Doubifid Cabts Recoversd- CPNG .18 2.06
Scheme-02 Charges 50,31 50,00
Supervision & lokt Surdey Incoma 810 ]
[Total 461.03 728,40 |

Note-13 OTHER INCOME

Figuras for the Yaar

Figures for the Year

PARTICULRS anded a@ an Iint einded as on Il
March 2025 March 20324
Interest Receivad on IT Refund, Faed Deposit & Secunty depasit J8.50 11865
Miscallanecus [ncome 2043 45,72
[Total . 168,37
Note-24 GAS CONSUMED LF bm Lakh)
Figures for the Year | PFlgures for the Year
Pariculars wnded as on 318 ended a3 on 318
March Zozs March 2024
Opaning Spoack 5.3 5.7
{4} Purchase of Gas 7.009.72 8.554 55
(- iGas Lsed as Fus 213 94 253,58
(- ¥Cloging stock G, b4 5,73
otal 6,705.87 6,303.04
Mote-25 EMPLOYEES BEMEFIT EXPENSES (% in Lakh)
Figures for tha Year Figuwres for tha Yaar
Particulars ended as on Ilst wnded &5 on 31st
Migrch 1025 March 2024
Salary and Wanes al.60 22.26
Emplover PF Contribution 507 .76
Gratiity Expense = D40
Earmed Leave pxpense .35 A4k
Staff wellare B.16 5.54
[Tatal 7518 30.53 |




Haridwar Natural Gag Private Limited
(A IV of GAIL Gas Limitad and Bharat Petralaum Corparation Limited)

Mote-76 INCREASE OR DECREASE IN INVENTORY (¥ in Lakh}
Figures for the Year | Figures Mer the Year
Farticulars ended as on 3ist endad as on 31st
March 205 Harch ZDZ4
{a)Inventories at the end of the year
Fneshnied Goods 3.51 2. 0E
Total &7 2.B8
(b} Invantories at the beginaing of the year
Finizhad Goods i % Lo g
Total| 3 PRy
[Tatal [ [0.63 (0.51)
Mote-27 FINANMCE COST {E in Lakh)

Figures for the Year

Figures for the Year

Particulars amdsd me an Tist anded as on Jist
March 2035 Harch 2024
Bank Commission/Charges 1657 23510
Leasa Incaras, 1.16 1.3
Benk Interest Charoes I 80541 940,89
B21.24 Q65 32
Less: Transfer to Capital Work-in-PFrogress {01 # (223.23)
|T¢u| 821,07 742.009 |
ﬂgﬂ-“ OTHER EXPENMSES {Ein l.lll.l'lt
Flguruy for the Year | Flgures for the Year
Particulars ended as on 318t anded 3= on I1st
March 2025 Marsh 2034
g4
-Electricity & Power Connection Expenses 42 .18 35.58
LY Rusnning charges 45,82 45,85
-Compressor Fusl Cost 212,94 £55.49
21l & Fugl Gen. Rent 1.27 2.33
Offtc= Rerit 5. 56 (TR
tHfice Maintenance Expensa o0 019
REM to Bullding 1.3%9 ay
R to Db 539 977
Operation & Mapintenance Charges J15.62 J20.149
Insurance Charges 43.32 4041
Lodging B Boarding Expenses 1.37
Aiadit Fes 2.7 3.54
Audit Expenses L.0% 0.35
Store & Spares Maintenancs .oz -
Ciffice Commanication Chargas 3.48 i |
PrinTing & StationEry 2.33 237
Travelling Expensas 5, 74 5,948
CSA Expenses 11.11
Acvertisgment & Publiciey 017 654
Gratuity Expenses 73
Permikgion Expenses a3 =
hicke Hiring & Running Expenca 2353 #3890
Professional and Consultancy Expenses E8. 45 1031
ERP Applcation Operating Expenses 59.25 6365
scurity Services B1.08 56,08
< Operation Charges 15,81 1B.&7
Cantract Manpower Expenses 19T 6o 270 5E
CFNG Régn. Charges .58
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Harldwar Natural Gas Private Limited

(A& W of GATL Gas Limited and Bharat Peireleum Corporation Limitsd )

Charges to PRHGRB 13u0a 10.00
Saminar, Conference Fee & Mesong Exp 295 #.63
Emgloyer Recnuitement Exp .19 063
Wabsite Chargas 3.74 374
Interest on lake peyment 0.02 0.01
Land Rent 2.17 0,50
Forecourt Expensas 53.60 6B, 85
Pantry Expansas 2.30 3.06
Misr. Expanzsy 0z D.C5
Managament Transter Exps, 3 .61
Lagg on Wrike off of Asges 040 12,85
PFravision far Deubbful Debts 21.52 311,51
Postage 8 Courer g k38
Statuilony Expensss 19 .66
Fire & Safery Expenges 45,26 <234
Facility Charges at Retall Outiet A0L5T 42,12
anagamant ice Cost
(Hnce some ﬂffgér‘gmlnuas posted at Haridwar hatural Gas Privaes
Limited are on the Role of GAIL Gas Lid & Bharat Petraleums Corparation Lk,
the expenditure reimbursedypayable are shown under other expenses instead
of Emgdoves cost)
Staff Salany B4 334 36
Total A 1.670.25 1775.25
Less: Management Service far Employes Cost transferred to Capital
Waork -in -Progress
Seaff Salary 13193 _29.59
Total B (131.93) [95.99)
[Less: Transfer to IEDC {Incidental Expenditiure During Construction]
Insuranioe 5.ad 1417
Cantract Manpewer Expenses 24.57 39,50
Vehice Hirng & Running Expenss 7.29 8.43
Sacunty Sarvices 15.27 14.02
Total € 153.04) (76.12)
! !Illl [(A+B+C) 1. 486,18 1,600.14
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Hnridwar Nataral Ges Private Llmdted
A Joint Marture of GAIL Gas Limbod and Bharet Petroleum Corporation Limites

28 Earning Per Share (€ in Lakh]
s wt D18t March®| A& &% 31st Barch’
Farticulars
2825 Jaz4
Frofit (Loss) amrbutabie to pauity share holdes T3 26 0615
Mominal value of oquilky share fin #) 1660 10,50
Waighted Alerags Humber of Equity Shares
Cutstamding at the
Wialghted Average No, of Shares gutvtanding at the ET1.60 #7160
and of the vear (en Lakh)
nge per shara- 0.91 68
I[I-:I- Diluted Earmings per share-in ¥
Prafit [Loss) attributable o sguity chase holdars 7973 35 ]
Hamnal vaheg of eguity share {in ¥ Lann 10,00
Weighted Awerage No, of Shares outstanding at th BT1 60 a71.40
and of the year {in Lakh]
Add: Etfect of Share Application Maney which are .
Dilutive Potantial Fauwity Shares
[Biluted Eprnings per share-in € gs per s 081 o680
Note-30 Deferrod Tax Assets/{Liabilities) [MNet) (¥ in Lakh}
As &t 3Llst March' | As at 3151 March’
Partculars 2025 3924
Deferrad Tax Liabilitias
Property, Plant and equipments and Intangibie assats I, 34523 L GG 8
Behar (3215 {2,151
Sub-total (&) L 346.02 1,064,873
Legs: Deferred Lax assais
Uniased Ta |osses 2.8 673.26
||'-"|=I:|'-lll'-li"1.u w438 0.65
Frowision or Doebiiol Debts 1308
Sub-total (&) 70602 B73.26
Tolal TE-A] {640.00) 1,57
Movament limbilities) - Bub note 304 [& E Laddh }
J1st March
Dpening Balancs Recognised In Retognised in Closing Balancs
Famiculrs profit and loss Sther
ermprehenssive
income
Daferrad Lax Habilities
||""'='.|F"'F'~"r'. Plant and equipmaerts and intangible assees 1, (6698 iBZ.25 . 1,349,233
Loaer Hald Lard [Z:1%] i 1.085) = (3.21)
Total 1.064,.83 281.18 - 1, 348.02
Less: Deferrod lax assets
Uriged by inseess &T1.26 1903 - &0, 21
IDIE.E"I:IH-IH-I' W5 @3 - 055 0.66
Providion for Doabiful Debis 11.08 13.08
Total BFA.Z6 31T - TOE.02
Defgrrod tax assets (Net) 301.57) Z48.43} 3 (654000}
Mavement of Deferred tax assets/ {Habilities) . {®in Lakh)
Far the Year ended March 2034
Cpaning Recognised in Recognisesd in Closing Balanca
Particulars Balmnca profit and loss Othar
comprahansive
income
Doferrad tax 1iabilibine
Property, Plant and equipments and infanalsie sty 20411 262.77 ;- 1,065 oA
Lease Hodd Land £1.0:57% fLim (2. L5}
Total 803 18 26167 = 1,063 83
Less: Deferred tax assets
Linuted tax losses £38.57 4.5 = 673,26
Total =T 469 L &TE 26
Daferried taw assots (Mot 59 22698 - (291 .:ﬁ"il
s
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Sub Mote 30A- Delerred Tan Working

(¥ in Lakh)]
Az at 3lst March MAs ot Aist March
i ) 2025 2024
1. Property, Plant & Equipment
Carrying ameunt of Property, Mant & Equipment 14,581,10 12,4232 88
Tax base of the fixed assets Q71124 B 587.58
Taxabde temparary difference (4 H49.E5) {3835.30)]
DTL @ 27.82% (PY 27.82%) {1,349.23) (1,066.98)
Trid to Statament of Profit b Loss [Cr/(Dr)) (ZBZ.25) (262.77)
. Leasenold Land
Carrying amount of Right ts Use assets 14,33 L6.98
Carmying amount of Lease Linbility £5.87 24.72
Taxable tempeorary differonce L1.54 7.74
DTA @ 27.82% (PY 27.82% ) 3.21 18
rfd ta Statamant of Profit & Loss [Cr,/{Dr}] 1.06 1.10
3. Disaliowance [ Alicwance u /s 438
[Ty pase of the disallswancs u's 438 a3
Taxable temporary difference 2.36
DTA & 2Z7.B2% [(PY 27.82%) 0.86 -
Trfd to Statemant of Profit & Loss [Cr/{Dr)] 0.66 -
4. Provision for Dobtful Debts
1Carrying amawnt of Provision of Doubtful Debts 4703
Tax Base of Frovision of Doubtful Debis . .
Taxahie temporary difference 4703 .
|OTA @ 7 .B2% (PY 27.82%:) 13.08 -
Trid to Statement of Profit & Loss [Crd{Dr)] 13.08 -
|3. Carrying amount of |osses
Tax base of carry forward of cpening losses (Z2,420.05)| (2,295.37)
Adjustment in carry forward of opening losses 7.64 -
=Tax base of carry forward of Currant Year lnsses (76.02) (124.68)
Tax base of carry forward of total losses [E.-*Eﬂ-.ﬁjl (2,420,085}
Deductible temggrary difference [2,488.43) [d420,05)
DTA £27.82% (PY 27.82%) 691.18 673.16
Trid to Statement of Profit & Loss [Cr/(Dr)] 19.02 34.60
* Profit / (Loss) as per Books 90295 800.45
Add; Provision for Grakulty [ Sec 438) 0.73 0.68
Add: Provision fer EL {Sec 438) 0,38 a
Add: Provision For Doubtiul Debis 21.52 3t.51
Add: CSR expenses disallowed ufs 37 11.11 -
Add: Inberest on THSTOS disallowed ufs 37 o.0o

: Bmployes PF Late Depadited 039 .

: Depriciation as per Companies Act 2013 5081 434, 06
Lass: Depreciation as per Incoma Tax {1.508.31) (1.421,33)
Less: Recavery from Doubtfid Dobters (600

dd: Loss on 'Wirike off of As<et .40 3285
Total 76,02 [122.18)
Frofit f (Loss) as per Income Tay Act (76.02) {122.18)

43 58
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HARIDWAR NATURAL GAS PRIVATE LIMITED

(A JV of GAIL GAS LIMITED & BHARAT PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED)
REGD. OFFICE: COCO-UNG STATION, KHASRA NO, 568-570, NEAR GOVIND

GARDEN, FIWALAPUR, HARIDWAR, UTTRAKHAND-249404

NOTE 31: -NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

L.

2.

Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited (“The company”) domiciled in India with registened
office in Haridwar, Uttarnkhand. The Company is & joint venture of GAllL Gas Limited (a
wholly owned subsidiary of Gaill (India} Limited) snd Bharst Petroleum Coarporation
Limited with equal share holding pattern, The company was incorporated in 2016 for smooth
implementation of City Gas Distribution (CGD) Project in Haridwar, Uttasak hand as per the
suthorisation of Petroleum and Natural Ges Regulatory Boerd (PNGRB) in July 20115,

Bank Guarantee Details:

(a): As per the regulation of PNGRB, Performance Bank Guarantee of ¥ 2.000.00 [skhs issued
by ICIC| Bank, New Delhi valid upto 26092027 has been submitted 10 PNGRB,

Bmﬁci_nujr' i_ﬁrpnsn ' Bunk BG Number | BG " Amend Expiry | Claim
| Name . Name Amount  eddate  Date Expiry
€in Lakhs Date
| BNGRB  [PNGRB  [ICICI | (393BGRO0S6 | 200000 | 27. | 6. | 23-Aup-
Authorisation | Bank | B1T Aug- Sep- 2R
- | ¥ L. | L | ® ) FES /) . | Et?# | 2T

(bi: Onther than the above, Bank Guaramees of Rs. 772.72 Lakhs in aggregoete have been issued

by ICICT Bank in favour of Gail (India) Limited and Rs. 205.27 Lukhs i favour of BPC
against various Gas purchase agrecment signed by the company.

onti iabilitics:
Company has contingent liability of Rs. 307.69 Lakhs (PY Rs. 254.77 Lakhs) apminst the
Annual Take or Pay claim (ATOPQ) raised by GAIL India [ due 10 Gailure in lifting of the
committed annual quantity of RLNG- JCC as per the 1erms of GSARLNGICC ngrECTen
signed. Company has disputed this claim and have senr s lener for waiver of tuke or pay for
calendar year 2024,

(a): The employees working in the various disciplines have been identified o working for (a)
project activities andor (b) operation activities, Therefore, the employee cost perlaining 1o
those employees engaged directly in project activities are directly charped 1o project
activities. Whereas, emplovees cost pertaining to those employees which have been engaged
in both of the aforesuid sctivities are charged to project and operation activities i. e. CEO and
CFO cost in the ratio of 20:70 ie 30% is charged 1o TEDC and 70% is Charged 1w O&M
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Similarlly CM (Projects, C&P and Billing) cost is in the ratio of 70:30 and Company
Secretary cost is charged 100% 10 O&M. Travelling expendituzres of all these employees are
booked to O&M,

(b): Other manpower cost hired including through third party has been booked as per their
engagement in Project and O&M at actuals, Security engaged for project activities, vehicle

hired, warehouse rent and electricity have been allocated to Incidental Expenditure as pan of

project uctivities, Interest on Capex Inan taken fromy HOFC hank during the financinl year is
charged to IEDC, Insurance cost against the CWIP including capital goods in stock is booked
to the IEDC and rest is charged 10 Swatement of Profit & 1oss.

During the year, some expenses have heen transferred to ‘Incidental Expenditure during the
Construction (IEDC)" which forms pant of Capital work in Progress, The detail of transferred
amount is as follows:

(in ¥ Lakhs)

Particulars ' [ F.¥.2024-25 | F.v.2023-24 |

Managemen! expenses 131.93 30,99 '
Expenses other than Management expenses 116.19 06.45
Total Expenses e 248.12 196.44

Capital Work in Progress (CWIP) include asset under construction which are undes dilTerent
stage of completion, capitalization will be made as and when assets are intended to be used,

Share Capital

al The Company is a Joint Venture of GAIL Gas Limited and Bharat Petroleum Corporation
Limited and the shares are issued 10 the promoter companies in equal ratio as per the
approval of the Board.,

bl The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is ¥ 9,000.00 Lakhs against which Equity
Shares of 7 B,716.00 Lakhs have been issued as on Balance sheet date with the approval
of the Board.

Land Details (Free Hold & Leaschold)

i) Frechold Land measuring 4000 sq. mir. Near JURS Country, Roorkee Road, Jwalapur,
Haridwar amounting 10 ¥ 690,94 Lakhs.

b) Leasehold Land measuring 1080 sq. mir. near Gail $V Station, Bhagwanpur, Chandanpur
at Roorkee amounting to 2 132.28 Lakhs has been taken on lease for 30 years m F.Y,
2019-20.

¢} Leaschold land measuring 100 sq. mitr in Jwalapur at Haridwar amounting o ¥ 158
lakhs'year (Present book value of Right of use asset ¥ 15,98 Lakhs, life of Right of use
asset has been taken as 10 years on best judgment basis in F.Y. 2020-217,
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9. In terms of disclosure requirement as per Ind - AS 23 on “Bormmowing Costs”, Company has
taken the loan of ¥ 13,723.00 Lakhs for the purpose of CGL project out of which ¥ £8.208.40
lakhs is outstanding as on 31-03-2025, total finance cost amounting to ¥ $20.08 Lakhs
including bank charges of ¥ 1667 Lakhs (Previous Year 2 963.99 Lakhs including bank
charges 2 23.10 Lakhs) was incurred, out of which an amount of # 819.91 Lakhs {Previous
Year 740.76 Lakhs) charged to Statement of Profit & Loss and 7 0.17 Lakhs {Previous Y ear
% 223.23 Lakhs) was capitalized towards capital Work in Progress during the period.

10. Emplovee Benefits:
{a} All short-term employee benefits are recognized st the undiscounted amouni in the
accounting period in which they are incurred,
(b) The Company “s contribution to the Provident Fund is based on a fixed percentage of the
eligible employee’s basic salary and debited 1o Statement of Profit and Loss.
(c) All long term benefits such as Gratuity as applicable has been provided as per the
provision of Gratuity Act and Eamed Leave provisions as per the approved HR policy for
HNGPL emplovees.

11. Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
(“MSMED Act, 2006™)

(¥ in Lakhs)
S1. No. | Particulars | 2024-25 [ 200324

1 The principal emount and the interest due thereon =
remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of aach
accounting vear
Principal 2.05 Nil
Intcrest - Nl

p Fhe amount of interest paid by the buver in terms of Nil Nil
section 16, along with the amounts of the payment
made to the supplier bevond the appointed day during

| each accounting vear.
3 The amount of interest due and payable for the period Nil Nil
of delay in making pavment (which have been paid but
bevond the appointed day during the vear) but withowt

4 | The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid Nl | Nil
at the end of each accounting year; and
3 The amoumt of further interest remaining due and Nil Nil

paynble even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid 1o the
small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section 23.




The above information regarding Micro, Small und Medium enterprises have been determined to
the extent such partics have been identified on the basis of information available with the

COmpany.

12. Due to/from Sundry Partics

Balances due 1o and due from sundry partics, halances of deposits, Financial Liabilities and

Current Assets are subjeet to Confirmation.

13. Related Party Disclosure:

A. The entire Equity Share Capital of the Company i3 held by GAIL Gas Limited and Bharat

Petroleum Corporation Limited, being the promoter companies,
B. Related Parties:
a) Relation and name of the related parties are:-

L. Promoter Venture: GAIL Gas Limited (A wholly owned Subsidiary of GAIL (India)
Limited) and Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited.

1. Associate Company: GAIL {India) Limited.
3. Key Management Personnel:

b) Related Party Transactions/balances outstanding with related parties;

Chief Executive Officer- Mr. Teckam Singh

Former Chiel Exccutive Officer =  Mr. Ashok Ranjan Chaudhary
Mr. Mohit Bharia

Chief Financial Officer- Mr. Naveen Kumar

Former Chief Financial Officer - Mr. Rajesh Agarwal
Company Secretary- Ms, Shikha

% in (Lakhs)
S Nao. Particulars ' Promoter | Associnte Key
Venture | Company | Munagement
Personnel
A GALL Gas Limited y
I Job work Income including | 6867 | - | &
Excise duty & GST
2 - Reimbursement  of Employee | 39.03 - ]
Remuneration
- Reimbursement of KMP (CFO) = W2 69,79
Remuneration
4 Reimbursement of KMP (Former - - 20.59
CFO) Remuneration
| 5 Interest Paid on Inter Corporate 37.25 : -




Loan L
b Repaymem  of Imercorporate | 375.00 - -
Loan
Total 539.95 - .38
B Bharat Petroleam Corporation
1% Limited
| Reimbursement of Employee | 83.78 . e "
Remuneration
2 Reimbursement of KMP (CEO) - : L E T
s Remuneration
3 Reimbursement of KMP (Former - - 53.08 |
CEQ) Remuneration !
4 Sale of CNG including Excise 435,68 . :
g Sale of CBG including GST 20011 . =
(i Expenses paid against Fecility | 22.72 - =
Charges including GST
7 Interest Paid on Inter Corporate | 57.23 = = o
Loan
B ‘Repayment of Intercorporate | 375,00 - -
L.oan
9 Purchase of Gas against Form €. 15.99
Toral 3151 - 150.53
C GAIL (India) Limited
El Expenses  on  account of | - 20,05 .
' Hooking-up Maimenance
Facilities
d Purchase of Gas including - 6858.73 -
interest.
El Security for Pipe line crossing 3 .00 2
adjusted.
4 Interest on Late Payment paid 10 - 0.01798 -
GAIL. , <
5 Permission Charges paid (o - 70
GAIL _
Total . 688149 - |
E Com pany Secretary (HNGPL) - - 1211
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C) Dutstanding Balance as on 31-03-2025

Gail 'Els Limited Zin (Lakhs) | Status

| (a) Job Work 0.208 | Receivahle
(b) Employee Retmbla'stm&m 21.39 Payable
{¢) Intercorporate Loan 37500 Payahle

Net Amount 426.182 i__ffiyil]l:

Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited | 7 in (Lakhs) Status
(2) ENG Sale 82,63 Receivable
 {b) CBG Sale %432 Receivahle
(e} RLNG Purchase 70.77 Pavable

| {d) Employee Reimbursement 38728 Payable
(€) Intercorporate Loan 375.00 Payable
| Net Amount R ' %1 Pavable
' Gail India Limited Ein (Lakhs) | Status
{a) Gas Purchase Alc 261.94 Payable
(b} Security  Against  Pipeline 2.0 Pavable
damaged
(c) Interest on Gas purchase delayed 15,23 Payable
payment
Net Amount 119.17 Pavable

The above Related Party transactions do not account for the Expenses provisions made
in the Financial Statements.

14. The details of amount paid/payable to auditors during the year; -

in (Lakhs)
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

| Statutory Audit Fee 0.75 118
Limited Review Fee 0.795 03 |
Tax Audit Fee il 0.18 0.1
Cost Audit Fee iy 0.41 0.4]

' Intemal Audit Fee 0.6 0.59
Secretarial Audit Fee . 0.35
Travelling & Out of Pocket Expenses of 0,20 035
auditors

' Total 7038 389




I5. The Cash Flow Statement for Financial year 2024-2025 is prepared using “Indirect
Method™ of preparation of Cash Flow Statement in accordance with Ind AS 7

16. Tax Expenses: -
In aecordance with [nd AS-12 ‘INCOME TAXES®
Current Tax Expenses
(2) Provision for current Tax Expenses has been accounted for on the basis of provision of
section 11508 of Income Tax Act 1961 for 2 153.31 Lakhs (Previous Year 7 13880
Lakhs) (Minimum Alternate tax-MAT), as the Income Tax payable a5 per Normal
provision of Income Tax Act 1961 is NIL duc to brought forward Business Loss,

(b} Deferred Tax Expenses/Income
Provision for Deferred tax has been accounted for ¥ 248.43 [akhs (Previous Year * 126.98
Lakhs) on temporary differences of Tax Base of Fixed Assets as per Income Tax Act 1961
and Accoumting Base of Fixed Assels (Carrying Amount), unused Tax Loss and Leasc
Assets & Liability, Disallowances w's 438 and Provision for Doubtful debts shown under
MNote-30 of Audited Financial Stalements,

17. Capital Commitment: -
The estimated number of contracts over T 5.00 Lakhs smounting 10 # 790.21 Lukhs (PY 2
2806.20 Lakhs) are remaining to be executed on Capital Accounts and not provided for.

18. Provision for liabilities (Project)
Provisional linhility of  376.36 Lakhs (PY # 228.14 Lakhs) has been made in the books of
accounts as on 31" March, 2023 which will be settled as per actual bills,
19. In compliance of Ind AS 116 on Leases the Disclosure in the respect of Leases are as under:
(i} Natare of the lease transaction:

Land Lease

The company has taken two plots of Land on lease, the deseription of which are as follows;

5.

Mo,

Location of land Date of lease | Lessor Area  of | Lease premium E
agreement  and Land and Smmp duty i
lease term charges (Fin |

*Lakhs)
Khata No. 605, | 25-09-2019 Khata No, 605, 0.1080 1
Khasra No. 97, | (30 Years) Khasra No. 97, | Hectare 113228

' Giram Bhagwanpur,
| Roorkee, Haridwar,
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Uttarakhand '
2 |DRS  Station, | 13-08-2020 (Nagar  Nigam, | 100 S8q.|
Jwalapur, Haridwar, | (1 Year) with | Haridwar meter ?3.58 lakhs
Untarakhand management Yearly (Present
estimmtion G4 10 vilue of lease
yesry hold asset ¥ /6,98
| Lakhs)
Company as lessee (Disclosure as per Ind AS 116)
A) Lease Liabilities
(i} Reconciliation of Lease Liabilities: (¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended March | Year ended March
” 31,2025 31,2024
' Balance at April 1 2472 2339
 Additions during the year 113 1.33
l.case Liahilities paid during the year 0,00 poo |
Balance at March 31 25.87 24.72
Current 13.35 959
Non-Current 12.52 15.13
(lipMaturity analvsis of Lease Liabilities: {1 in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended March | Vear ended Murch |
31,2025 31, 2024
Less than one year (Current) 13.25 5.84
One to five vears {Non-Current) 12.52 11.65
| Mare than five years - 3.48
(i} Cash outNMow for leases during the year ended 31 March, 2025 (T in Lakhs)
Particular " Year ended March | Year ended March |
31,2025 31,2024
Principal Portion of Lease Liabifity (.00 R
Interest Portion of Lease Liability 0.00 0.00
Expense relating to shori-term leases 0.00 ' 0.00
—E?.:Enﬁt relating 1o low value leases i .04 000 ..
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B) Right of Use Asseis: (? in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended March | Year cnded Mareh
I= 31,2025 31,2024
Opening Balance F13:73 377.39
Add: Additions during the vear (Hooking Up) 0.00 0.0
Less; Deletions during the vear 0.00 01,061
Less: Depreciation for the year 3. 66 63.66
| Closing Balance 250.07 I' 313.73 .'
C) Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss: {Z in Lakhs)
Particalars Year ended March | Year ended March |
31,2025 31,2024
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 63.66 63,66
Intcrest expenses on lease liabilities .16 1.33
| Expenses relating 1o shon-term leases Nil Nil
Expenses relating to low value assets leases Mil Nil
Eﬂriable lease payments Nil Nil

20. The company operates in a single segment of Natural Gas Business: therefore, disclosure
requirements s per Ind AS 108 “Operating Segmenis™ are not required. However, Entity-

wise disclesures are as below: -
Information about products and services:

The Company is in a single line of business of “Sale of Natural Gas.™

Geographic Tnformation:

The compeny operates presently in the business of Natural Gias, including

City Gas

Distribution in Haridwar GA. Accordingly, revenue from customers and all assets are located

in Haridwar GA only,

21. Financisl Instrument

24.1 Categories of financial instrument i in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2025 March 31,2024

Financial assets at amortised cost ok

Non- Current ]

Trade Receivable 3342 42.05

Loans (Security Deposit) .50 =
| Current
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1.

Trade F_t_i_.fg:qivah]: 627.16 514.82
 Cash und Cash equivalents 663,65 1284.36 |
Loans (Security Deposit) ' 3.29 277

Financial liabilities at amortised cost T AT ) -

Non- Current

Borrowings 3 | 6424.40 782631

Lease linbilities 12.52 15.13
| Trade Payable 308.50 | 39518

Current

Borrowings _ 1784 .00 | | 782.00

Lease liabilities 13.35 9,59

Trade Payablc 711.00 767.35

Other financial liabilities 1172.67 1155.68

24.2 Fair value measurements

The fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities are included at the amount that

would be received to sell an asset and paid 1o transfer o Hability in an orderly transaction

between the market participants. The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the {air values.

- Trade receivable, cash and cash equivalents, losns, Trade payable, other financial
linbilities: Fair value spproximate their carrving amounts largely due o shori-term
malurities of these instruments.

= The Company’s lease liabilities and Borrowings are measured sl amortised cost. which
approximates the fair value as on the reporting date.

Revenue recognition & unbilled revenue of sale (Natural gas)

The company has generally recognized revenue from sale of DPNG (Domestic piped natural
£as) on hasis of spet billing done through its customized billing software (ERP),

But in certain cases, the billing could not be possible due 1o Jocked/closed doors of homes,
Further, revenue has been recognised on provisional basis for the estimated units consumed
by the customers from the date they were billed till the date of balance sheet. In all these
cascs, unbilled revenue has been recognized on estimated basis for Rs 55.00 lakhs by way of
computing estimated daily consumption of gas units based on the historical consumpiion
pattern of last quarter at the rates applicable during that period. Where there is no historical
consumption data, the provisional consumption for the unbilled period 15 taken as NIL.
Further for new customers. provisional consumption is considered m the rate 0,42 SCMD
from the date of start of supply till the Balance Sheet date.
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23, Gas Consumption reconciliation during the vear:

While preparing the reconciliation of Gas for the year, it has heen obscrved that the gas
consumed quantity in comparison to Gas sales volume is high during FY 2024-25
management estimate that there might be the cases of meter calibrations and gas leakage in
the ling, faulty meters, leakage of regulators. It was also noticed that there are approx. 21588

RFC {ready for connection cases) and billing is done for 16369 cases based on JMR received
from the contractors. Follow-up actions on pending conversion from RFC o NG with the
contractors are in process,

24. During the physical verification of inventories, no material discrepancies were obscrved.
Provision for slow-moving and non-meoving inventory of Rs NIL (Previous Year Rs, NIL
has been provided, Further a sum of Rs. 0.006 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs, 049 Lakhs) has
been written off on account of damages observed on physical verification of furniture
fixtures and office equipment, Further a sum of Rs. 0.39 Lakhs has been written off on
account of management estimation of non-recovery of Hard drives seized by SHO Kapaseda
Delhi.

25. As a mega drive for recovery of outstanding dues, company has sent bulk notices to £96
DPNG customers (P.Y. 60 Customers). Due 1o change in methodology as approved by
management same have been excluded for calculating provision for doubtful debts,

26. Based on technical analysis by the Company, the residual value of City Gas Distribution
(CGD) pipelines has been revised to “NIL which resulted in additional depreciation of Rs,
11.87 lakhs during the finuncial vear ended 315t Mareh 2025,

27. Additional information pursuant te the provisions of paragraph S(viii) of Part 11 of
Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013 are as per Anmexure - | to the Financial
Statements,

8. Additional Regulatory Information as per Schedule 111 to the Companies Aet 2013 are
as per Annexure - 1l to the Financial Statements.

TN g,
s

89



29. Undisclosed Income
The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts
that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the period in the tax asscssments
under the Income-tax Act, 1961,

3. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

CSR amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Schedule VII thereof by the company during the year is Rs. 11,11,161 (Previous Year Rs.
MA). details of which are as under:

Particulars of CSR Activity For the vear ended 31 | For the yvear ended 31
March, 2025 March, 2024
Sustainable Waste Management I'L11,161 NA
S5 Total 11,11,161 ' NA

The above CSK amount of Rs. 11,11,16]1 (Previous: Year Rs. NA) has been contributed to
ITT, Roorkee for sustainable waste management initiative and there is no unspent amount in
case of any project which is required to transferred 1o any fund specified in schedule VII of
the companics act or special account under sec 135(6) of said act

31. Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency’ or virtual currency during the
current period ended as a1 31st March 2025,

32. All the figures are shown in Lakhs for preparation of Financial Statement.




33. Previous Year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever neceszary W correspond
with the current year's classification/disclosure,

For and on I;tha[f of the Board

'nat"t:n Kitnar Teekam Singh 5

(CFO) (CEO) (CS)

PAN- AIRPK03320 PAN-AFHPS5726D PAN-GRPPS323)G
W Ygurtt b e

Ajay ﬁm.n it Kaushik Mitra Ashish Gn}-a(

Director Director Director Ch_:;!lnh

DIN-08585727 DIN- 10769334 DIN-09592775  DIN-09581136

Ag per our repori of even date
For Anil Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants

A NN 890
1 WA UM,

a8 CK. Anil Kumar Jain
Froprietor
M. No.: 070253
Uedvn- 35 30252 BMyx LL 383

Place: 1L 4a oy A,
Date: 25.0vy, 2e8e
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HARIDWAR NATURAL GAS PRIVATE LIMITED
(A IV of GAIL GAS LIMITED & BHARAT PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED)
REGD. OFFICE: COCO-CNG Station, Khasra No. 569-570, Near Govind Garden,
Jdwalapur, Haridwar, Uttarakhand-249404

BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31" March, 2025

NOTE -1: - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

| B

2.

3.

Corporate information

Haridwar Mawral Gas Private Limited ("HNGPL™) is 8 company domiciled in India with
registered office at Jwalapur, Hardwar in Uitarakhand.

HNGPL is a Joint Venture Company of GAIL Gas Limited (A wholly owned subsidiary of Gail
{India) Limited) and Bharat Petreleum Corporation Limated. It was incomporated on Apnl 20,
2016 for the smooth implementation of City Gas Distribution (CGL)) projects based on the Joint
Venture Agreement of the Consortium. The Consortium, subsequently the Jomnt Venture
Company namely Haridwar Natural Gas Pnvate Limited (HNGPL) has been authorized by
Petroleum and Natural Cras Regulatory Board (PRGRB) for implementing City Gas Distribution
Network in the Geographical Area of Haridwar District.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Siandards)
Rules, 2015 and Companies {Indisn Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016,

The financizl statements have been prepared on & historical cost basis excepl for certain financial

assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount. The fact is
disclosed i the relevant accounting policy.

The financial statements arc presented in Indian Rupees (*'TNR”) and the values arc reunded to the
nearest Lakhs, except otherwise indicated.

Signif; ! ing Polici

3.1 Property, plant and equipment

(i) Tangible Assets

Property, plant and equipment are stated at onigmal cost net of lax / duty credit availed, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. if any. All costs relating to
acquisition of Tangible assets till commissioning of such asseis are capitalized.
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When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced ot intervals,
the Company derecognizes the replaced part, and recognizes the new part with its own
associated useful life and it is deprecinted sccordingly.

Property, plant and equipment are eliminated from financial statement, either on disposal or
when retired from active use. Related cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated from
financial statement. Further, Losses arising in case retirement of property, plant and equipment
and gains or losses ansing from disposal of propenty, plant and equipment are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss in the year of occurrence.

The amoum is transferred into the PPE from Capital WIP, whenever asset is ready for its
intended  use on the basis of Project Manager's Statement of “completed works for
capitalisation™,

Depreciation on tangible PPE is provided in sccordance with the manner and uscful life (afier
retaming the estimated residual value of up to 5% except PE Laying and Steel laying where Nil
residual value is estimated) as is specified in Schedule 11 of the Companies Act 2013, on
Straight Line Method (S1L.M) on pro-rata basis (Monthly pro-rata for bought out assets),

ltems of Property, Plant and Equipment costing not more than Rs 5,000/ (Rs. Five Thousand
only) are depreciated at |00 percent in the vear of acquisition.

The asset’s residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation/amortization are reviewed
at cach reporting period and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Uzeful life as specified in Schedule 11 is as follows:

Particulars Useful life as per Schedule 11 of the

Companies Act, 2003 (In Years)

and facilities, Storage tanks and related equipmem

Qil and gas assets (including we"s], processing plant 25

Compressor's Engine Overhauls 1 | 4
Pipelines 30
Office Fquipment's £ )
Building i 30
. Tempaorary Structure 3
| Swrage Container i 20
Fumiture and Fixiures 10
Computers and data processing units:
(i) Servers and networks B
(i) End user devices, such as, desktops, laptops, 3

(ii) Capital Work in Progress

Capital work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation /

97



under devedopment including construction stores, Material in Transit/ Equipment/Services, eic.
received al site for use in the projects as at the halance sheet date.

All revenue espenses incurred during construction period, which are exclusively auributable to
acquisition/construction of PPE, are capitalized at the time of commissioning of such assets.

3.2 Intangible Asseis

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost Following
mitial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any scaumulated amontization and
accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets with finite lives (Le.. software. licenses and wehsite) are amortized over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired.

Intangible assets with indefinite uselul lives (principally comprise those ‘right of use’ for which
there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which they are expected to gencrate net cash
flows given the fact that these rights can be used cven afier the life of naspective pipelines) are
not amortized, but are tested for impaimment annually, cither individually or @t the cash-
generating unit level. The assessment of mdefinite life is reviewed annually o determine
whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from
mdefmite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gamns or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the camying amount of the asset and are recognized in
the statemnent of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

A3 Impairment of assets
At cach balance sheet date, the company assesses whether there is any indication that any
property. plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite life may be impaired, If any such
impairment exists, the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated 1o determine the extent of
mpairment, if any,

3.4 Inventories

a) Stock of gas in pipeline is valued at cost on First in first out (FIFQ) basis or net realizable
value whichever is lower.

b) Raw materials and finished products are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is
lower.

€] Slock i process is valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. It is valued at
cost where the finished products in which these are 1o be incorporated are expected 1o be sold



al-or above cost.

d) Stores and spares and other material for use in production of inventories are valued at
weighled average cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. Tt is valued at weighted
average cost where the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected 1o
be sold at/or above cost,

¢) Surplus/obsolete stores and spares are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is
lower.

f) Surplus/obsalete capital stores, other than held for use in construction of eapital assets, are
valued at Tower of cost or net realizable value.

The cost of inventories is based on the first-in first-out principle, and includes expendinire
inctirred in acquiring the inventaries, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in
bringing them to their existing location and condition. In the case of manufactured inventories,
cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity.

Stores & Spares which meet the definition of property plant and equipment and satisfy the
recognition criteria are capitalized as property, plant and equipment,

Net realizable value is determined based on estimated selling price, less further costs expected to
be incurred o completion and disposal,

A8 Foreign currency transactions

The Uompany's financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s
functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency, using
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

At each balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary items (such as Cash. Receivables, Loans.
Puyables, ete.) are reported using the closing exchange rate (BC selling rate for pavable and TT
buying rate for receivable).

Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting at cach balance
sheet date of the Company’s monetary items al the closing rate arc recognized as gain or loss in
the period in which they arise,

Non-monetary items (such as Investments, PPE. ete.) which are carried at historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate a1 the date of the
transaction, L
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3.6 Revenue and Other Income

Salcs are recognized on transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership to the buyer, which
generally coincides with the delivery of goods to customers at an amount that company expects
to be entitled m exchange for those products/services. Sales include excise duty but exclude
Value added Tax / goods and service tax.

Income in respect of Interest on delayed realization from customers is provided on accrual basis,
Income in respect of Interest on Fixed Deposit Receipts is provided on acerual basis,
Recovery from doubtful debtors is recognized as income on realization basis.

1.7 Emplovee Benefiis

All employee benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months afier the end of
petiod in which the employee render the related services are classified as shor-term employee
benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, and short term compensated absences, performance
incentives. cie. are recognized during the period in which the employvee renders related service

All employee benefits that are expected to be settled wholly after 12 months afier the end of
period in which the employee render the related services ore classified as long-term employee
benefits (Gratuity and earned leave accruals).

Gratuity is provided in the statement of Profit and loss in compliance with Gratuity Act, 1972,
Earned leave accruals are provided as per the approved HR policy of the company,

Long term Employee benefits with regard 1o the employees deputed by Promoter Companies are
provided by their parent organizations,

3.8 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalized as a part of the cost of such asset till such time the asset is ready
for its intended use or sale, after netting off any income carmed on temporary investment of such
funds. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time
{generally over twelve months) fo get ready for its intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the period in which they are incurred,
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3.9 Lenses

The Company as a lessec

a)

b)

d)

Identifving a lease

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land. The Company
asscsses whether & contract contains a lesse, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if' the contract conveys fhe right to control the use of an identificd asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a coniract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract
involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the asset through the perlod of the lease and (iii) the Company has the
right to direct the use of the usset.

Company recognizes right-of~use assets representing the right 1o use the underlyving assets.

Inifial recognition of Right of use asset (ROLT)

Al the daic of commencement of the lease, the company recognises a right of use asset
(ROU). ROU assets are initially measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and
Impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities,

Subsequent measurement of Right of use asset (ROLU)
ROU asse1s are subsequently amortized using straight-line method from the commencement

date to the earlier of the ¢nd of the uscful life of ROU assets or end of the lease term. Iff

ownership of the leased asset wansfers 10 the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost

reflects the exercise of a purchase option, deprecintion is calculated using the estimated useful
life of the asset.

Imitial measurement of Lease Liability
Lease liability are initially measured at the present value of lease payments to be paid over
the lease term. discounted wsing the company’s incremental horrowing rate available at the
time of Initial measurement.
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liahilities comprise of the
th]k:w-ing:
Fixed Payments, including in-substance fixed pavments.
Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate.
- Amount expected 1 be payable under a residual value guarantee, and
- The exercise price under a purchase oplion, extension option and penaltics for carly
termination only if the Company is reasonably certain 10 exercise those options.
Subsequent measurement of Lease Liability
Lease Liabilitics are subsequently increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition. the carrving amount of lease labilities is re-
messured 1f there 1% a modification, a change in the lease term, o change in the lease payments
(€., changes to future poyments resolting from a change in an index or rate used o
determine such lensc payments) or a change in the assessment of an option 1o purchase the
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underlying assel.

fi Short-term leases and leases of low value assets
I'he Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e..,
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
ol contain @ purchase option). Tt also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition
exemplion. Lease pavmemts on short-term leases and leases of low valuc asscts arc
recognized as expense in Statement of Profit and Loss,

Asa lessor
Leases are classified as operating leases when all the risks and rewards of ownership of an
asset do mot wansfer substantially, Remal income from operating lease is recognised as
. revenue. Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership transfer from the Company 1o the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under
finance leases are recorded as receivables and finance lease income is allocated to accounting
periods to reflect a constant peniodic rate of relurn on the net investment outstanding in
respect of the leasa.

A0 Taxes

Current Income Tax
Current tax is provided at amounts expeeted to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet method, on all temporary differences at the
balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrving amounts for
financial reporting purposes, unused Tax Loss and Lease Assets & Liability,

Deferred tax assets and labilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) lhat
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

The carrying amount of delerred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and is adjusted
to the exient that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

11 Provisions, Contingent lishilities, Contingent assets and Commitments
General
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present abligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits

will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.
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If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability, When discounting is
used, the increase in the provisions due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingemt assets and commitments are reviewed al each
balance sheet date.

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation. or a present
obligation that may, but probably will mol. require an outflow of resources, or & present
obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably.

312 Government Grants

Government Grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the gramt will be
. recetived and all attached conditions will be complied with.

When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions. with an
interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is
regarded as a government grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised and measured at
fair value and the government grant is measured ns the difference between the initial carrying
value of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the
accounting policy applicable to financial Habilines.

3 13Current versas non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the halance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

An asset ps current when it is:

* Expecied i be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cyele

* Held pamarily for the purpose of trading

* Expected 1o be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
al least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

* ltis expected 10 be settled in normal operating cyele

* It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

+ Itis due o be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the sertlement of the liability for at least twelve
manths after the reporting period
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The Company classifies all other linbilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and lahilities.

3.14 Financial Instrumenis

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise w a financial asset of one entity and a
finzneial liability or equity instrument of another entity,

i) Financial assets
Classification
The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair valuc
through other comprebensive income or fair value through statement of profit and loss on the

basis of ils business model for managing the nancial assets and the contracmal cash flows
characteristics of the financial asget.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fiir value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fuir value through statement of profit and loss, transaction costs that are amributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent messurement financial assets are classified in below categories:

a} Finaneial assets carried at am ortized cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual
terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principals and interests on the principal amounts cutstanding.

b} Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured al fair value through other comprehensive income |
it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assels and the contractual terms of the financial-assets give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and intcrest on the
principal amount outstanding,

¢} Financial assets ai fair value through statement of profit and loss

A financial asset which is not ¢lassified in any of the above categorics are subsequently fair
vilued through statement of profit and loss.
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Derecognition

A financial asset is primarily derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired or the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets that are trade
recervables or contract revenue receivables and all lease reccivables.

i1} Financial linbilitics
Classification

The company classifies all financial liabilities as subseguently measured at amortized cost except
tor financial liabilities at fair value through statement profit and logs. Such liabilities including
derivatives that are liabilities shall be subsequently measured at fair value.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liahilities are initially recognized af fair value, and in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables. net of directly atributable teamsaction costs. The Company's financial
liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdraft.

Subsequent Measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as deseribed below:

= Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cosis
After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured al amortized cost under the EIR Method. Gains and losses are recognized in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR
amoriization process,

Amortized cost is calculmted by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortization 1s
included as finance cost in the statement of profit and loss.

» Efective interesl method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
Instrument and allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipis (including all foes
and peints paid or received that form an integral part of the cffective interest rate,
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transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debs
nstrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrving amount on initial
recopnition.

e Financial Liabilities at fair value through statement of profit and loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held
for trading and financial liabilitics designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classificd as beld for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for rading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liahility is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability, The difTerence in (he respective carrying amounts
is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

fii}  Offsetting of Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance

sheet if tvere 15 a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is
an intention 1o settle on anet basis, W realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultancously.

315 0thers

Liguidated damages, if any, are accounted for as and when recovery is affected and the matter is
considered setiled by the management

Custom Duty and other claims are accounted for on acceptance in principle.
3.16 Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share is caleulated by dividing the profit from continuing operations and izl
profit, both attributable to equity sharcholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted Eamings per Equity share is calculated by dividing the Adjusted Net Profit After Tax
aliributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity Shares
outstanding during the period adjusted of the effect of all dilutive potential equity shares,
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317  Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumpiions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statemenis requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
asscts and liabilities. and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
fiabilities at the date of financial statements. Estimates and sssumptions are continuously
evaluated and are based on management’s experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Uncertaimty aboul
these assumptions and estimates could result in cutcomes that require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of assets or lisbilities affected in future periods.

Revisions of accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the period in which estimates are revised and in any future period affected. Changes in
estimates are accounted for prospectively.

Contingencies

Contingen liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims againsi
the Company, including legal, contractor, land access and other claims. By their nature.
contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail 1o
accur. The assessment of the existence, and potentisl quantum, of contingencies inherently
involves the exercise of significant judgment and the use of estimates regarding the cutcome of
future events.

Lenses-Estimating the Incremental Borrowing Rate

The Company cunnot readily determine the interest rate mplicit in the lease, therefore, it uses it
Incremental Borrowing Rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilitics. The IBR is the rate of imerest that
the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value 1w the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic cnvironment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company “wounld have to pay’,
which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they peed to be
adjusicd to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain
entity=specific estimates,

Impairment of financial assels
The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumplions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Company uses judgment in making these assumptions and sclecting the

inputs 1 the impairment calculation, based on Company's past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
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il

Statement showing difference betweeen financial tran
billing software (ERP) vis-a

sactions / balances as per

-vis Accounting software (Tally prime) for the year ended
as on 31st March 2025

% in Lakhs
Amount as per Amount as per ';T:::E;T
SR.NO. Particulars B"""&i‘;‘;‘“m A““#‘;ﬁ"iﬁ;ﬁ?“ Statements
A) (B) (Differential)
(B-A)
Security from DPNG customers: - - - -

1 (a) For Gas 164.970 164.890 -0.080
{b) For Meter 317,280 316.310 -0.870
Application Fee Income (Current
Year)

2 |As per ERP : 474 Registration
As Per Tally : 456 Registration 1.422 1.368 -0.054

Total Security / Registration charge
(Payable) (A) 483 672 482 568 -1.104

3 DPNG Debfors™ (Receivable] (B] | 226689 226.729 0.040

[Total 1 = i B 1144

The DPNG Debtors as per Tally amounti

the DPNG Debtors on 1st April 2025.
The difference (A) of ¥ 1.104 Lakhs shortly shown in Tally as recoverable from the DPNG debtors.
The difference (B) of # 0.040 Lakhs shortly in ERP and shown as recoverable from DENG Debtors in ERP,

ng to ¥ 226 729 Lakhs are net of realisation ¥ 4.319 Lakhs received from
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